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DEMAREST BOARD OF
EDUCATION

568 Piermont Road, Demarest, NJ 07627 - T (201)768-6060 F (201) 767-9122

December 7, 2020

Honorable President and Board Members
Demarest Board of Education

568 Piermont Road

Demarest, NJ 07627

Dear President and Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Demarest School District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and
fairness of the representation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects, and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the basic financial statements and results of operations
of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial statements and
schedules, as well as the auditors’ report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo
an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants, and State Aid”. Information related to this single audit, including the auditors’ report on internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and questioned costs, are
included in the single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Demarest School District is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the
“GASB”). All funds of the District are included in this report. The Demarest Board of Education and all
its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 8. These
include regular, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District completed the
2019/2020 fiscal year with an enrollment of 715 students, which is 5 students more than the previous
year’s enrollment.

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Borough of Demarest is a small community
located in Northeast Bergen County of approximately 5,000 citizens. The economic conditions and
population have remained stable in the community. A significant change in population is not anticipated.
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3) MAJOR INITIATIVES: Demarest Middle School experienced many changes. The new
Performing Arts classroom was opened and 2 large classroom were created out of the old music room,
Air conditioning was added to the gym and a classroom was re-purposed into a 21st Century Classroom
to serve Learning Language Disabled students. Student laptops were upgraded in a continuing effort to
provide current technology to students as part of the district’s ongoing one to one initiative. Additional
security measures were added at each school. This includes a security kiosk at the entrance at each school
building. The Newsela program was expanded to include all grade in Luther Lee Emerson. To address
future infrastructure needs and ensure building systems are well maintained, the Board added to the
Capital Reserve account.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control system designed to ensure that the assets of the District
are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurances that
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgements by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control system is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control system is also subject to periodic evaluation by District
management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control system, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as
well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of Education.

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the
capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as restrictions,
commitments and/or assignments of fund balance at June 30, 2020.
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6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB).

The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in
“Notes to the Basic Financial Statements”” Note 1.

7) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state
statute as detailed in “Notes to the Basic Financial Statements”, Note 3. The District has adopted a cash
management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss
under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted
in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the act.

8) RISK MANAGEMENT: The District carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to
general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property
and contents, and fidelity bonds. The cost of insurance coverage is increasing substantially due to current
economic conditions.

9) OTHER INFORMATION:

A) Independent Audit — State statue requires an annual audit by independent certified public accountants
or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Nisivoccia, LLP was selected by the Board
of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statues, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the related Uniform Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-
08. The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements
and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports related specifically
to the single audit and Government Auditing Standards are included in the single audit section of this
report.

10) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the
Demarest School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers
of the School District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of
our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of our financial accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Fox ( Thomas J Pere:
Superintendent Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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Independent Member
BKR International

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Demarest School District
County of Bergen, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Demarest School District (the
“District”) in the County of Bergen, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, which follows this report, the pension and Postemployment schedules in exhibits L-1 through L-5 and
the related notes, and the budgetary comparison information in Exhibits C-1 through C-3 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary schedules and the schedules of
expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and New Jersey’s OMB
Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and the other
information, such as the introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements

The accompanying other supplementary schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary
schedules and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The accompanying other information such as the introductory and statistical sections has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 7, 2020 on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 7, 2020 NISIVOCCIA LLP
Mount Arlington, New Jersey

Frances Qﬁm o4 NMeasroccer LLP
Francis Jonés v

Certified Public Accountant

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of Borough of Demarest School District’s annual financial report presents its discussion and analysis of
the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this
section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements
that present different views of the District:

e The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting
the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

e The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education were
financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Proprietary funds statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities the District
operates like a business, such as food services.

e Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District acts
solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains
and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the District’s budget for the year. Figure A-1 shows how
the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-1
Organization of Borough of Demarest School District’s Financial Report

Management's Basic Required
Discussion and Financial Supplementary
Analysis Statements Information
District-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the District’s

activities they cover and the types of information they contain.

The remainder of this overview section of

management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-2
Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
District-Wide Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Statements Funds Funds Funds
Entire district | The activities of the Activities the Instances in which
(except district that are district operates the district
Scope fiduciary not proprietary or similar to private administers
funds) fiduciary, such as businesses: food resources on behalf
special education services of someone else,
and building such as scholarship
maintenance programs and
student activities
e Statement | ¢ Balance sheet e Statement of e Statement of
of net e Statement of net position fiduciary net
Required Financial position revenue, e Statement of position
Statements e Statement expenditures, and revenue, e Statement of
of changes in fund expenses, and changes in
activities balances changes in net fiduciary net
position position
e Statement of
cash flows
Accounting Basis and Accrual Modified accrual Accrual accounting | Accrual accounting
Measurement Focus accounting accounting and current | and economic and economic
and economic | financial resources resources focus resources focus
resources focus
focus
All assets and | Generally assets All assets and All assets and
liabilities, expected to be used and | liabilities, both liabilities, both
Type of Asset/Liability deferred liabilities that come due | financial and short-term and
Information inflows and during the year or soon | capital, short-term | long-term; funds
outflows both | thereafter; no capital and do not currently
financial and | assets or long-term long-term contain capital
capital, short- | liabilities are included assets, although
term and they can
long-term
All revenue Revenue for which cash | All revenue and All additions and
and expenses | is received during or expenses during deductions during
Type of Inflow/Outflow during the soon after the end of the year, regardless | the year, regardless
Information year, the year; expenditures of when cash is of when cash is
regardless of | when goods or services | received or paid received or paid
when cash is | have been received and
received or the related liability is
paid due and payable
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

District-wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets, deferred
inflows and outflows, and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net position — the
difference between the District’s assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and liabilities — is one way to measure the
District’s financial health or position.

o Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the District’s overall health, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in
the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities: Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and special
education, transportation and administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these
activities.

o Business-type activities: The District charges fees to help it cover the costs of certain services it provides.
The District’s food service is included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on its most
significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track
of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

e Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.
e The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as repaying its
long-term debts) or to show that is it properly using certain revenue (such as federal grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

e Governmental funds: Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on {1} how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
out, and {2} the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the District-wide statements, additional
information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements explains the relationship (or difference)
between them.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e Proprietary funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. The District’s enterprise funds
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows. The internal service funds (the other kind of proprietary fund)
report activities that provide supplies and services for its other programs and activities. The District currently
does not maintain any internal service funds.

o Fiduciary funds: The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as scholarship
funds and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. The District
excludes these activities from the district-wide financial statements because it cannot use these assets to

finance its operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements: Provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the
District-wide and fund financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Net Position.

20.73%, more than the year before. (See Figure A-3).

Figure A-3
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Government Activities

Business-Type Activities

The District’s combined net position was $9,926,865 on June 30, 2020, which is $1,704,639, or

Total School District

Percent
2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019 Change
Current and Other Assets $ 6,521,678 $ 5,655900 $ 13,883 $ 12,637 $ 6,535561 $ 5,668,537
Capital Assets,Net 11,298,551 11,064,013 5,294 5,956 11,303,845 11,069,969
Total Assets 17,820,229 16,719,913 19,177 18,593 17,839,406 16,738,506 6.58%
Deferred Outflows
of Resources 793,128 1,023,562 793,128 1,023,562 -22.51%
Long-Term Liabilities 6,972,240 7,680,354 6,972,240 7,680,354
Other Liabilities 402,560 303,611 402,560 303,611
Total Liabilities 7,374,800 7,983,965 7,374,800 7,983,965 -7.63%
Deferred Inflows
of Resources 1,330,869 1,555,877 1,330,869 1,655,877 -14.46%
Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 7,569,150 6,753,818 5,294 5,956 7,574,444 6,759,774
Restricted 5,391,957 4,401,846 5,391,957 4,401,846
Unrestricted/(Deficit) (3,053,419) (2,952,031) 13,883 12,637 (3,039,536) (2,939,394)
Total Net Position $ 9,907,688 $ 8,203,633 $ 19,177 $ 18593 $ 9,926,865 $ 8,222,226 20.73%

Changes in Net Position. Net position from governmental activities increased $1,704,055 while net position from

business-type activities increased $584.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Figure A-4
Changes in Net Position from Operating Results
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District Percent
2019/2020 2018/2019  2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019 Change
Revenue:
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services $ 483449 $ 473,183 $ 134353 $ 214472 $ 617,802 $ 687,655
Operating Grants/Contributions 4,365,885 4,175,882 4,365,885 4,175,882
General Revenue:
Property Taxes 15,103,525 14,777,790 15,103,525 14,777,790
Other 93,665 1,128,043 93,665 1,128,043
Total Revenue 20,046,524 20,554,898 134,353 214,472 20,180,877 20,769,370 -2.83%
Expenses:
Instruction 11,136,611 10,983,440 11,136,611 10,983,440
Pupil and Instruction Services 3,674,166 3,769,961 3,674,166 3,769,961
Administrative and Business 1,709,297 1,457,918 1,709,297 1,457,918
Maintenance and Operations 1,338,116 1,316,573 1,338,116 1,316,573
Transportation 160,594 158,973 160,594 158,973
Other 374,215 510,962 163,257 198,372 537,472 709,334
Total Expenses 18,392,999 18,197,827 163,257 198,372 18,556,256 18,396,199 0.87%
Capital Lease Proceeds 80,018
Transfers (29,488) 29,488

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position $ 1,704,055 $ 2,357,071 $ 584 $ 16,100 $ 1,624,621 $ 2,373,171 -31.54%

Governmental Activities

As discussed elsewhere in this commentary, the financial position of the District improved. However, maintaining
existing programs and the provision of a multitude of special programs and services for disabled pupils place great
demands on the District’s resources.

It is crucial that the District examine its expenses carefully. Increasing parental and student demands for new
activities and programs must be evaluated thoroughly.

Figure A-5 presents the cost of six major District activities: instruction, pupil and instructional services,
administration and business, maintenance and operations, transportation, and other expenses. The table also shows
each activity’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific
programs). The net cost shows the financial obligation placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions:
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Figure A-5
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
Total Costs of Services Net Cost of Services
2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019

Instruction $ 11,136,611 $ 10,983,440 $ 7,118,255 $ 7,144,757
Pupil and Instruction Services 3,674,166 3,769,961 3,138,508 3,245,866
Administration and Business 1,709,297 1,457,918 1,414,324 1,178,626
Maintenance and Operations 1,338,116 1,316,573 1,338,116 1,316,573
Transportation 160,594 158,973 160,247 151,978
Other 374,215 510,962 374,215 510,962

$ 18,392,999 $ 18,197,827 $ 13,543,665 $ 13,548,762

Business-Type Activities

Net position from the District’s business-type activity increased by $584, (Refer to Figure A-4). Factors contributing
to these results included:

e Food services revenues exceeded expenses by $584, accounting for all of the increase in the net position of
the business-type activities.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

The District’s financial position improved during the year. Expenditures during the recent year increased as a result
of an increased number of pupils with disabilities entering the School District. In addition to greater numbers, these
pupils are more profoundly disabled and require more complex educational and related services.

A continued increase in the enrollment of disabled students has also forced the District to expand its classroom
teaching staff, special education aides and special transportation. The cost of these additional teachers, and special
education aides, however, has largely been offset by salary reductions realized from the retirement of a significant
number of veteran staff. Fringe benefit costs for all staff have increased dramatically in the past several years. The
Board has changed to a different Health Benefits carrier in order to reduce costs in this area.

Legislation (S-1701) which reduced the District’s unassigned General Fund surplus funds to 2% of the budget has had
a direct impact on the District’s planning for upcoming years. The District now has less funds available in the event
of an emergency or unanticipated special education tuition. Consideration must be given to suspending the practice of
utilizing unassigned fund balance to reduce the tax levy in future budgets. Increases in operating costs could exceed
expected growth in the Borough’s ratables and could potentially increase local taxes in the future. In order to
maintain a stable financial position, the District must continue its practice of sound fiscal management.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget amendments
fall into two categories:

o Changes made within budgetary line items for changes in school-based needs for programs, supplies and
equipment.
e Changes in budgetary line accounts to more accurately reflect current requirements.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMAREST, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Long Term Liabilities

Figure A-6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Government Activities Business-Type Activities Total School District

Percent

2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/2019 Change
Land $ 1303570 $ 1,303,570 $ 1,303570 $ 1,303,570
Construction in Progress 1,192,160 680,000 1,192,160 680,000

Buildings and Building

Improvements 8,311,495 8,564,824 8,311,495 8,564,824
Machinery & Equipment 491,326 515619 $ 5294 $ 5956 496,620 521,575

Total Capital Assets,
(Net of Depreciation) $ 11298551 $ 11,064,013 $ 5294 $ 50956 $ 11,303,845 $ 11,069,969 2.11%

Figure A-7
Outstanding Long-Term Debt
Total School District Percent

2019/2020 2018/2019 Change
General Obligation Bonds $ 3,245,000 $ 3,715,000
Obligations Under Capital Leases 276,820 353,017
Compensated Absences Payable 340,929 278,655
Unamortized Bond Premium 207,581 242,178
Net Pension Liability - PERS 2,901,910 3,091,504

$ 6,972,240 $ 7,680,354 -9.22%

Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the following
circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future:

e Statutory limitation on Tax Levy increases of 2%
o Very limited State Aid expected
o Limitation on District’s General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it

receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Mr. Thomas Perez,
Board Secretary/Business Administrator at 568 Piermont Road, Demarest, NJ 07627.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfund Receivables
Receivables from State Government
Receivables - Other
Inventory
Restricted Assets:
Capital Reserve Account - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets:
Sites (Land)
Construction in Progress
Depreciable Buildings and Building Improvements
and Machinery and Equipment

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refunding
Deferred Outflows for Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accrued Interest Payable
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows in Pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Capital Projects

Excess Surplus

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

JUNE 30, 2019

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ 3,774,692 $ 12,359 $ 3,787,051
4,550 4,550

260,736 260,736

8,546 8,546

1,524 1,524

2,473,154 2,473,154
1,303,570 1,303,570
1,192,160 1,192,160
8,802,821 5,294 8,808,115
17,820,229 19,177 17,839,406
57,669 57,669
735,459 735,459
793,128 793,128
47,963 47,963
276,579 276,579
78,018 78,018
662,684 662,684
6,309,556 6,309,556
7,374,800 7,374,800
1,330,869 1,330,869
1,330,869 1,330,869
7,569,150 5,294 7,574,444
2,473,154 2,473,154
2,915,121 2,915,121
(3,049,737) 13,883 (3,035,854)

$ 9,907,688 $ 19,177 $ 9,926,865
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Exhibit B-1
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3774674 % 18 $ 3,774,692
Interfund Receivable 4,550 $ 49,183 53,733
Receivables from State Government 260,736 260,736
Receivables from Other Governments
Other Accounts Receivable 8,546 8,546
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,473,154 2,473,154
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,521,660 $ 18 $ 49,183 $ 6,570,861
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Interfund Payable $ 49,183 $ 49,183
Accounts Payable - Vendors 71,236 $ 30,343 101,579
Unearned Revenue 78,000 $ 18 78,018
Total Liabilities 198,419 18 30,343 228,780
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess Surplus - Current Year 1,460,429 1,460,429
Excess Surplus - Prior Year -
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 1,454,692 1,454,692
Capital Reserve Account 2,473,154 2,473,154
Committed to:
Year-End Encumbrances 18,840 18,840
Assigned:
Year-End Encumbrances 257,145 257,145
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 139,631 139,631
Additional Assigned Fund Balance -
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
July 1, 2020 - August 1, 2020 49,390 49,390
Unassigned 488,800 488,800
Total Fund Balances 6,323,241 18,840 6,342,081
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $ 6,521,660 $ 18 $ 49,183 $ 6,570,861

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position (A-1) are Different Because:

Total Fund Balances - Govermental Funds (Above) $ 6,342,081
Capital Assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in

the funds. The cost of the assets is $20,613,644 and the accumulated depreciation is $9,315,093. (See Note 5) 11,298,551
Long-Term Liabilities, including Bonds Payable, are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. (See Note 6) (3,862,749)
Accrued Interest on Long-Term Liabilities, including Bonds Payable, is not due and

payable in the current period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. (47,963)
Bond premiums are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds in the year the bonds are sold. (207,581)

The deferred amount on bond refunding is not reported as an expenditure in the Governmental Funds
in the year of expenditure. 57,669

The Net Pension Liability for PERS is not Due and Payable in the Current Period and is not Reported
in the Governmental Funds. (2,901,910)

Certain Amounts Related to the Net Pension Liability are Deferred and Amortized in the Statement
of Activities and are not Reported in the Governmental Funds:

Deferred Outflows 560,459
Deferred Inflows (1,330,869)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 9,907,688

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from Exhibit B-2)
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (A-2) are Different Because:

Capital Outlays are reported in the Governmental Funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which Depreciation differs from Capital Assets adjustments and Capital Outlays
during the period.
Depreciation Expense  $ (544,009)
Capital and Assets Adjustments 48,000

Capital Outlays 730,547

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (sick days) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the Governmental Funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduces
Long-term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

The governmental funds report the effect of premiums when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities (+)

The governmental funds report the effect the deferred amount on the refunding relative to advance refunding when
debt is first issued whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. (-)

In the Statement of Activities, Interest on Long-term Debt in the Statement of Activities is accrued, regardless of
when due. In the Governmental Funds, interest is reported when due. When the accrued interest exceeds the
interest paid, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the interest paid exceeds the accrued
interest, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Capital Leases entered into by the district are other financing sources in the Governmental Funds, but the Acquisition
increases Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

Repayment of Capital Leases is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduces Long-Term
Liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

The net pension liability reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of
current financial resources and is not reported as an expenditure in the Governmental Funds:
Change in Net Pension Liability
Change in Deferred Outflows
Change in Deferred Inflows

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

Exhibit B-3

$ 783712

234,538

(62,274)

470,000

34,597

(9,612)

7,050

(80,018)

156,215

189,594
(244,755)

225,008

_$1704055_
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Exhibit B-4
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventory

Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
NET POSITION:
Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Business-Type
Activities
Enterprise Funds

$ 12,359
1,524

13,883

64,641
(59,347)

5,294

19,177

5,294
13,883

$ 19,177

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Operating Revenue:

Local Sources:

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs
Salaries, Payroll Taxes & Benefits

Supplies and Materials

Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Transfer - General Fund

Change in Net Position After Transfers

Net Position- Beginning of Year

Net Position- End of Year

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

Exhibit B-5

Business-Type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

8 134353

134,353

94,363
65,576
2,656
662

163,257

(28,904)

29,488

584

18,593

$ 19,177
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments to Vendors
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Board Contribution - Transfer In

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used For Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) in Inventory

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT

Exhibit B-6

Business-Type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

$ 134,353
(65,576)
(95,450)

(2,656)
(29,329)

29,488
29,488

159
12,200

5 12350

$  (28,904)

662

(1,087)
$  (29,329)
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Employee Contributions

Total Assets
LIABILITIES:

Interfund Payable - General Fund
Payroll Deductions

and Withholdings
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for:
Flex Spending Claims

Total Net Position

Exhibit B-7

Flex Spending

Agency Trust
162,355 $ 1,995
4,550
162,355 6,545
4,550
75,288
87,067
162,355 4,550
1,995
-0- $ 1,995

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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Exhibit B-8

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Additions:
Contributions:
Employee Contributions
District Contributions
Total Contributions

Total Additions

Deductions:
Flex Spending Claims

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of the Year

Net Position - End of the Year

Flex Spending
Trust

$ 4,550
10,800

15,350

15,350

16,301

16,301

(951)

2,946

$ 1,995

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (the "Board") of the Borough of Demarest School District (the
"District™) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's
accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The
Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is
appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Defining the Financial Reporting
Entity" establishes standards to determine whether a governmental component unit should be included in the financial
reporting entity. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2)
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the primary government. A legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a
reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its
constituents. (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access,
a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization. (3). The economic resources
received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled
to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government. There were no additional entities
required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

District-Wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net position and the statement of activities present financial information about the District’s
governmental and business-type activities. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District in
its entirety, except those that are fiduciary. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
transactions. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for business-type
activities and for each function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expenses are allocated to the
functions using an appropriate allocation method or association with the specific function. Indirect expenses include
health benefits, employer’s share of payroll taxes, compensated absences and tuition reimbursements. Program
revenue includes (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenue
that is not classified as program revenue, including all taxes, is presented as general revenue. The comparison of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each government function or business segment is
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

B. Basis of Presentation:

Fund Financial Statements:

During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School District functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements
for each fund category - governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in
accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all
funds as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for and
report all expendable financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the
capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by NJDOE, the District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. GAAP, as it pertains to
governmental entities, states that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted
revenue. Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or
additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings,
additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be
transferred from and to current expenses by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. Thus the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
from State and Federal Governments (other than major capital projects, debt service or the enterprise funds)
and local appropriations that are legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction
of capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election, funds appropriated
from the General Fund, and from aid provided by the state to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

B. Basis of Presentation: (Cont’d)

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise (Food Service) Fund: This Enterprise Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses pertaining to the
District’s cafeteria operations. The fund is utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds: The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District on behalf of others
and include the Student Activities, Payroll Agency, and Flexible Spending Trust Fund.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting:

The District-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes
place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenue is recognized when measurable and available.
The District considers all revenue reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenue is collected within
sixty days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

It is the District’s policy, that when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
(committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, to apply restricted resources first followed by
unrestricted resources. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, it is the District’s policy to apply committed
resources first followed by assigned resources and then unassigned resources when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the District may fund certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenue. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred,
both restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to finance the program. It is the District’s policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenue.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the General, Special Revenue and Debt
Service Funds. The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was submitted to the County office and was
approved by a vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any
time during the fiscal year. All budgetary amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect
the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual
budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year.
For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles, with the exception of the special revenue fund as noted
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental
records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The General Fund budgetary revenue differs from GAAP revenue due to a difference in recognition of the last two
state aid payments for the current year. Since the State is recording the last two state aid payments in the subsequent
fiscal year, the District cannot recognize these payments on the GAAP financial statements.

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenue and Expenditues:

Special
General Revenue
Sources/Inflows of Resources: Fund Fund

Actual amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 17,927,718 $ 177,000
Differences - Budget to GAAP:

Prior Year State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements, not

recognized for budgetary purposes. 29,575
Current year State Aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP Statements. (35,687)

Total Revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 17,921,606 $ 177,000
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control: (Cont’d)

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenue and Expenditues:

Special
General Revenue
Uses/Outflows of Resources: Fund Fund
Actual amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 16,597,253 $ 177,000
Total Expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 16,597,253 $ 177,000

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash and cash in banks. Certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost.

The District generally records investments at fair value and records the unrealized gains and losses as part of
investment income. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the
fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to type of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school
districts. Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The statute
requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such funds are secured in
accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national
banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral,
having a market value of at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure
the deposits of Government Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all
the other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

F. Interfund Transactions:

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the District-wide statements are reported in the same
manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental
funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the Enterprise funds. Repayments from funds responsible for
particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

On fund financial statements, short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. These
amounts are eliminated in the statement of net position, except for amounts due between governmental and business-
type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible.

H. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources
are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as restricted, committed and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year-end as
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods
and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in the
balance sheet as unearned revenue at fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the beginning
of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year-end.

I. Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services
rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

J. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses:

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are
recorded as expenditures during the year of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods
beyond June 30, 2020.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

K. Capital Assets:

During the year ended June 30, 1994, the District established a formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital assets acquired or constructed subsequent to June 30, 1994, are recorded at historical cost including ancillary
charges necessary to place the asset into service. Capital assets acquired or constructed prior to the establishment of
the formal system are valued at cost based on historical records or through estimation procedures performed by an
independent appraisal company. Land has been recorded at estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
valued at acquisition value. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is not capitalized. The District does not
possess any infrastructure. Capital assets have been reviewed for impairment.

The capitalization threshold (the dollar value above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts) is
$2,000. The depreciation method is straight-line. The estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the district-
wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and Building Improvements 50 Years
Furniture and Equipment 10 to 15 Years
Computer and Related Technology 5 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures in the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets are not capitalized and the related
depreciation is not reported in the fund financials.

L. Long Term Liabilities:

In the district-wide and enterprise fund statements of net position, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or enterprise funds. Bond
premiums and discounts are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt using the
straight-line method of amortization. In the fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

M. Accrued Salaries and Wages:

The District does not allow employees who provide services to the District over a ten-month academic year the option
to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve month year; therefore, there are no accrued salaries and
wages as of June 30, 2020.

Page 40



BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

N. Compensated Absences:

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by GASB. A liability
for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is
outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with District personnel
policies. Upon termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for
ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee after varying years of service based upon employees’
individual contracts.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year should
be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due after one year.

0. Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue in the Special Revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned. See Note
1(D) regarding the Special Revenue Fund.

P. Fund Balance Appropriated:

General Fund: Of the $6,323,241 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2020, $2,473,154 is restricted in the
capital reserve account; $1,460,429 is restricted as current year excess surplus and will be appropriated and
included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022; $1,454,692 is restricted as prior year
excess surplus and has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021; $257,145 is assigned year end encumbrances; $139,631 is assigned for subsequent year’s
expenditures and is included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021; $49,390 is
additional assigned fund balance for July 1 through August 1, 2020; and $488,800 is unassigned which is
$35,687 less than the Budgetary basis, due to the final state aid payments, which are not recognized until the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund has $-0- of restricted fund balance at June 30, 2020.
Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects fund has $18,840 of committed fund balance at June 30, 2020.

Calculation of Excess Surplus: In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7 as amended by P.L. 2003, C.73
(S1701), the designation for Restricted Fund Balance-Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the
New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey
school districts are required to restrict General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year-end of June 30 if they did
not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent year’s budget. The
District had excess surplus as noted above.

The District’s unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is less on a GAAP basis than the budgetary basis by
$35,687, as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2003, C.97 provides that in the event a state
school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last two state aid
payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority
for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB
requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government
recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two state aid
payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize these last two state aid payments on the
GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. The excess surplus calculation is calculated
using the fund balance reported on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, including the final two state aid payments
and not the fund balance reported on the fund statement which excludes the last two state aid payments.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Q. Deficit in Net Position:

The District has a deficit in unrestricted net position of $3,049,737 in its governmental activities, which is primarily
due to deferred outflows, inflows and liabilities related to pensions. This deficit does not indicate the District is in
financial difficulties and is a permitted practice under generally accepted accounting principles.

R. Net Position:

Net position is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources.

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future reporting
period. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the District that is applicable to a future
reporting period. The District had deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2020 related to pensions and for the
deferred amount on the refunding of the District’s bonds. The District had deferred inflows of resources at June 30,
2020 related to pensions.

Net position is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted and unrestricted.

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also would be included in this
component of net position.

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets.

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the
restricted component of net position.

S. Fund Balance Restrictions, Commitments and Assignments:

The restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. The committed fund balance classification
includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined for a formal action of the District’s
highest level of decision-making authority. Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be
used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s General Fund and includes all spendable
amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned classifications should be used only
to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts has been restricted,
committed or assigned.

Fund balance restrictions have been established for excess surplus and a capital reserve.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

S. Fund Balance Restrictions, Commitments and Assignments: (Cont’d)

The District Board of Education has the responsibility to formally commit resources for specific purposes through a
motion or a resolution passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education at a public meeting of that
governing body. The Board of Education must also utilize a formal motion, or a resolution passed by a majority of
the Members of the Board of Education at a public meeting of that governing body in order to remove or change the
commitment of resources. The District has committed resources in the Capital Projects Fund of $18,840 at June 30,
2020.

The assignment of resources is generally made by the District Board of Education through a motion or a resolution
passed by a majority of the Members of the Board of Education. These resources are intended to be used for a specific
purpose. The process is not as restrictive as the commitment of resources and the Board of Education may allow an
official of the District to assign resources through policies adopted by the Board of Education. The District has
assigned resources in the General Fund of $257,145 for encumbrances and for amounts designated for subsequent
year’s expenditures of $139,631 and $49,390 at June 30, 2020.

T. Operating Revenue and Expenses:

Operating revenue are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the Enterprise Fund. For
the School District, these revenues are sales for the food service program. Operating expenses are necessary costs
incurred to provide the services that are the primary activities of the Enterprise Fund.

U. Revenue - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions:

Revenue, resulting from exchange transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in
the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include
timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is
first permitted; matching requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to be used for a
specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available
before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at
fiscal year-end: property taxes, interest and tuition.

V. Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

W. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State of New Jersey
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the State of New Jersey Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the PERS's and TPAF’s net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the PERS and the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Pension Plan
investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE 2. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND DISTRICT-WIDE STATEMENTS

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used on the government fund statements and
district-wide statements, certain financial transactions are treated differently. The basic financial statements contain a
full reconciliation of these items.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board classifies certificates of deposit which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than
twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments.

GASB requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the District in its cash, cash equivalents and
investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned.

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its cash management plan, the District ensures that any deposit or investment
matures within the time period that approximates the prospective need for the funds, deposited or invested, so that
there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits or investments.

Credit Risk - The District limits its investments to those authorized in its cash management plan which are those
permitted under state statute as detailed below.

Custodial Credit Risk — The District’s policy with respect to custodial credit risk requires that the District ensures that
District funds are only deposited in financial institutions in which New Jersey school districts are permitted to invest
their funds.

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New Jersey
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School
districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

Deposits: (Cont’d)

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed
depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public
funds on deposit, and

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital funds
of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 100% of the
amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Investments:

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

)

(2)

®3)

(4)

()

(6)
(7)

(8)

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United
States of America;

Government money market mutual funds;

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act
of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor;

Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units
within which the school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of purchase,
issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the “Local
Authorities Fiscal Control Law”, P.L. 1983, ¢.313 (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.). Other bonds or obligations
having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of purchase may be approved by the
Division of Investment in the Department of the Treasury for investment by local units;

Local government investment pools;

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of
P.L. 1977, c¢.281 (C.52:18A-90.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

@ the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of this
subsection a, or are bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397
days from the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities,
counties, and entities subject to the requirements of the “Local Authorities Fiscal Control
Law,” P.L. 1983, c. 313 (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.).;
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

Investments: (Cont’d)

(b)
(©)
(d)

(€)

the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in section 1 of
P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C.17:9-41); and

a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of collateral is
exececuted; or

9 Deposit of funds in accordance with the following conditions:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The funds are initially invested through a public depository as defined in section 1 of P.L.
1970, c. 236 (C.17:9-41) designated by the school district;

The designated public depository arranges for the deposit of the funds in deposit accounts in
one or more federally insured banks, savings banks or savings and loan associations or credit
unions for the account of the school district;

100 percent of the principal and accrued interest of each deposit is insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund;

The designated public depository acts as custodian for the school district with respect to these
deposits; and

On the same date that the school district’s funds are deposited pursuant to subparagraph (b) of
this paragraph, the designated public depository receives an amount of deposits from
customers of other financial institutions, wherever located, equal to the amounts of funds
initially invested by the school district through the designated public depository.

As of June 30, 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the District consisted of the following:

Restricted Cash
Cash and Cash and Cash
Equivalents Equivalents Total

Checking and Savings Accounts $ 3951401 $ 2,473,154 $ 6,424,555

During the period ended June 30, 2020, the District did not hold any investments. The carrying amount of the Board's
cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2020, was $6,424,555 and the bank balance was $6,568,124.
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by Board resolution during for the accumulation of funds for use as capital
outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the General Fund and its
activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the State Department of Education, a district may increase
the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by a
transfer by Board resolution at year-end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriation, or both.
A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either
by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the
local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 1,272,154
Increased by:
Interest Earned 1,000
Board Resolution 1,200,000
Ending Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 2,473,154

The June 30, 2020 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2020 exceeds the
balance in the capital reserve account as of June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Beginning Adjustments/ Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated:
Sites (Land) $ 1,303,570 $ 1,303,570
Construction in Progress 680,000 $ 512,160 1,192,160
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 1,983,570 512,160 2,495,730
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and Building Improvements 15,662,948 88,287 % 48,000 15,799,235
Machinery and Equipment 2,188,579 130,100 2,318,679
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 17,851,527 218,387 48,000 18,117,914
Governmental Activities Capital Assets 19,835,097 730,547 48,000 20,613,644
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Building Improvements (7,098,124) (389,616) (7,487,740)
Machinery and Equipment (1,672,960) (154,393) (1,827,353)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (8,771,084) (544,009) (9,315,093)
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation $ 11,064,013  $ 186,538  $ 48,000 $ 11,298,551
Business -Type Activities:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Furniture and Equipment $ 64,641 $ 64,641
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (58,685) $ (662) (59,347)
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation $ 5956  $ (662) $ -0- $ 5,294

The District expended $512,160 towards construction projects in progress during the fiscal year. As of June 30, 2020,
the District has $1,211,000 of active construction projects, of which $1,192,160 has already been expended and
$18,840 is encumbered. Additionally, the District expended $218,387 from its current year capital budget, and
depreciated $544,009 of its governmental capital assets.
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular Instruction

Student & Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

$

342,563
156,512
4,134
10,227
25,242
5,331

$

544,009

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the District-wide

financial statements:

Serial Bonds Payable

Capital Leases Payable
Unamortized Bond Premium
Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability - PERS

A. Bonds Payable:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2019 Accrued Retired June 30, 2020
$ 3,715,000 $ 470,000 $ 3,245,000

353,017 $ 80,018 156,215 276,820
242,178 34,597 207,581
278,655 62,274 340,929

3,091,504 189,594 2,901,910

$ 7,680,354 $ 142292 $ 850,406 $ 6,972,240

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. All bonds

are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

obligation bonds and will be retired through the Debt Service Fund.

The District had bonds outstanding at June 30, 2020 as follows:

Bonds issued by the Board are general

Issue Final Interest
Purpose Date Maturity Date Rates Amount
Series 2016 Refunding School Bonds 12/20/16 02/15/26 3.00-5.00% $ 3,245,000
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

A. Bonds Payable: (Cont’d)

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal Bonds
Year Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 490,000 $ 127,900 $ 617,900
2022 515,000 108,300 623,300
2023 530,000 87,700 617,700
2024 550,000 66,500 616,500
2025 570,000 44,500 614,500
2026 590,000 21,700 611,700
$ 3,245,000 $ 456,600 $ 3,701,600

B. Unamortized Bond Premium

The unamortized bond issuance premium of the governmental fund types is recorded in the noncurrent liabilities. The
current portion of the unamortized bond issuance premium balance of the governmental funds is $34,597 and is
separated from the long-term liability balance of $172,984.

C. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued:
As of June 30, 2020, the District has no bonds authorized but not issued.

D. Capital Leases Payable:

The District purchased various computer technology equipment and copiers under capital leases. All capital leases
are for terms of four years for the computer technology equipment and five years for the copiers and will be retired
through the General Fund. The District has entered into capital leases totaling $774,480 of which $497,660 has been
liquidated as of June 30, 2020. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020.

Fiscal
Year Amount
2021 156,873
2022 92,819
2023 18,120
2024 18,120
2025 3,020
288,952
Less: Amount Representing Interest (12,132)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 276,820

The current portion of capital leases payable is $150,689 and the long term portion is $126,131.
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

E. Compensated Absences Payable:

No portion of the compensated absences balance represents a current liability; therefore, the entire balance of
$340,929 is reported as a long-term liability in the governmental fund types. The General Fund will be used to
liqguidate Compensated Absences Payable.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2020, no liability existed for compensated absences in the Food Service
Fund.

F. Net Pension Liability:

The Public Employees’ Retirement System’s (PERS) net pension liability of the governmental fund types is recorded
in the current and long-term liabilities and will be liquidated by the General Fund. The current portion of the net
pension liability at June 30, 2020 is $-0- and the long-term portion is $2,901,910. See Note 7 for further information
on the PERS.

NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS

Substantially all of the Board’s employees participate in one of the two contributory, defined benefit public employee
retirement systems: the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employee’s Retirement System
(PERS) of New Jersey; or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP), a tax-qualified defined contribution
money purchase pension plan under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 401(a).

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For
additional information about the PERS, please refer to the Division’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28. 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers 1 and 2
members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Benefits Provided (Cont’d)

members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age
60, to Tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62 and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service
credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a members retires prior to the
age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1
members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred
retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service
retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active members and
contributing members. The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local
employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments
due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any such amounts will not
be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement
systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This
unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the
payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of
assets. District contributions to PERS amounted to $157,425 for fiscal year 2020.

The employee contribution rate was 7.50% effective July 1, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred OQutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $2,901,910 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was 0.0159%, which was an increase of 0.0002% from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension (benefit) of $13,192. At June 30, 2020, the

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)
A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amortization Deferred Deferred
Period Outflows of Inflows of
Year in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2014 6.44 $ 7,669
2015 5.72 47,420
2016 5.57 234,677
2017 5.48 $ 416,580
2018 5.63 336,635
2019 521 254,029
289,766 1,007,244
Changes in Proportion 2014 6.44 26,184
2015 5.72 125,833
2016 5.57 113,630
2017 5.48 25,535
2018 5.63 118,496
2019 5.21 73,929
218,609 264,998
Difference Between Expected and 2015 5.72 13,156
Actual Experience 2016 5.57 7,122
2017 5.48 12,389
2018 5.63 12,819
2019 5.21 19,417
52,084 12,819
Net Difference Between Projected 2016 5.00 (53,561)
and Actual Investment Earnings 2017 5.00 64,277
on Pension Plan Investments 2018 5.00 44,710
2019 5.00 (9,618)
45,808

Contribution Subsequent to
Measurement Date 2019 1.00 175,000

$ 735,459 $ 1,330,869
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)
A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding employer specific
amounts including changes in proportion and the contribution subsequent to measurement date) related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Total
2020 $ (83,794)
2021 (271,826)
2022 (242,725)
2023 (113,972)
2024 (11,704)

$  (724,021)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July
1, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00 — 6.00% based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 — 7.00% based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee Mortality Table
with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and a 99.7% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates
used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a
127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.00% at June 30,
2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and
Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was
determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected_returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS’ target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
Risk Management Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

A. Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Cont’d)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% as of June 30, 2019. This single blended
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00% and a
municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20 Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based 100% of actuarially
determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2057,
and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of June 30, 2019
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed below, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2019

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.28%) (6.28%) (7.28%)
District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability — $ 3665583 $ 2901910 $ 2,258,407

Pension plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS
financial statements.

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan with a special funding situation, by which the State of New Jersey (the State) is responsible to
fund 100% of the employer contributions, excluding any local employer early retirement incentive (ERI)
contributions. The TPAF is administered by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits (the
Division). For additional information about the TPAF, please refer to the Division’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)
B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)
Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions
and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the
case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28. 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers 1 and 2
members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60™ of
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age
60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and Tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more
years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a members retires prior to
the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years
of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and
contributing members. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State’s pension
contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which included the employer portion of the normal cost
and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based
on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2020, the State’s pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined
amount.

Special Funding Situation

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to be in a special
funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity.
Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed
amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the
local participating employers, such as the District. This note discloses the portion of the District’s total proportionate
share of the net pension liability that is associated with the District. During the fiscal year ended 2020, the State of
New Jersey contributed $1,237,906 to the TPAF for normal pension benefits on behalf of the District, which is less
than the contractually required contribution of $1,967,579.

The employee contribution rate was 7.50% effective July 1, 2018.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District was
$33,358,597. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018 which was rolled
forward to June 30, 2019. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was 0.054%, which was an increase of
0.004% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ -0-
State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Associated

with the District 33,358,597
Total $ 33,358,597

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the State recognized pension expense on behalf of the District in the amount
of $1,967,579 and the District recognized pension expense and revenue for that same amount in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 financial statements.

The State reported collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding employer
specific amounts) related to pensions from the following sources:
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amortization Deferred Deferred
Year of Period Outflows of Inflows of
Deferral in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2014 8.5 $ 768,874,621
2015 8.3 2,351,172,865
2016 8.3 5,609,216,856
2017 8.3 $ 8,483,527,374
2018 8.29 5,172,258,445
2019 8.04 3,507,345,617
8,729,264,342 17,163,131,436
Difference Between Expected 2014 8.5 7,323,009
and Actual Experience 2015 8.3 145,211,243
2016 8.3 69,755,412
2017 8.3 150,939,884
2018 8.29 907,352,137
2019 8.04 136,265,890
1,203,503,264 213,344,311
Net Difference Between Projected 2016 5.0 (431,855,192)
and Actual Investment Earnings on 2017 5.0 452,016,524
Pension Plan Investments 2018 5.0 288,091,115
2019 5.0 (144,882,771)
163,369,676

$ 9,932,767,606 $ 17,539,845,423
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Cont’d)

Amounts reported by the State as collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-paid members contributions
as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Total

2020 $ (272,405,510)
2021 (704,260,700)
2022 (630,562,767)
2023 (1,216,378,743)
2024 (2,381,316,232)

Thereafter (2,402,153,865)

$ (7,607,077,817)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July
1, 2018 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55 — 4.45% based on years of service
Thereafter 2.75 — 5.65% based on years of service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality table
with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality
improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.00% at June 30,
2019) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and
Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was
determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS (Cont’d)

B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return (Cont’d)

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Target Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Buyouts/Venture Capital 12.00% 10.85%

Discount Rate — TPAF

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% as of June 30, 2019. This single blended
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00% and a
municipal bond rate of 3.50% as of June 30, 2019 based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based upon the
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 70% of their actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2054. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2054, and the municipal
bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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B. Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District as of
June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the State’s net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than
the current rate:

June 30, 2019

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.60%) (5.60%) (6.60%)
State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability Associated with the District $ 39,432,141 $ 33358597 $ 28,466,832

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - TPAF

Detailed information about the TPAF's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TPAF financial
statements.

C. Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits. If an
employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS or TPAF, the employee may be eligible to enroll in the DCRP. DCRP
provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and
disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enrollment for members of the DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available
financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the DCRP. The
financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of
Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are based on
percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP was established July 1,
2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 and expanded under the provisions of
Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

For DCRP, the District recognized pension expense of $23,873 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Employee
contributions to DCRP amounted to $32,513 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District maintains insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. The District is
exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Health benefits are covered through Horizon Blue Cross/Blue Shield of
New Jersey.

Property and Liability Insurance

The District is a member of the Northeast Bergen County School Board Insurance Group (the “Group”). This public
entity risk management group provides general liability, property and automobile coverage and workers’
compensation coverage for its members. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical
Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The Group is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is an
insured and self-administered group of school boards established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance for
its respective members in order to keep local property taxes to a minimum. Each member appoints an official to
represent their respective entity for the purpose of creating a governing body from which officers for the Group are
elected.

As a member of this Group, the District could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. If
the assets of the Group were to be exhausted, members would become responsible for their respective shares of the
Group’s liabilities. The Group can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of New
Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. These distributions are divided among the members in the same ratio
as their individual assessment related to the total assessment of the membership body.

The audit for the Group as of June 30, 2020 is not available as of the date of this audit report. Selected, summarized
financial information for the Group as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Total Assets $ 32,441,723
Net Position $ 19,557,163
Total Revenue $ 14,472,107
Total Expenses $ 11,208,523
Change in Net Position $ 3,263,584
Member Dividends $ 1,860,981

Financial statements for the Group are available at the Group’s Executive Director’s Office.

Burton Agency

44 Bergen Street
P.O. Box 270
Westwood, NJ 07675
(201) 664-0310

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Contributory
Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to remit employee withholdings to the State on a quarterly basis.
All of the District’s claims are paid by the State.
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NOTE 9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permit
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Great American Life Insurance Company (G.A.L.1.C.)
AXA/Equitable Life Assurance

Metropolitan Life Insurance Company

Prudential Insurance Company

NOTE 10. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Board of Education receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Board of Education's
programs and activities.

NOTE 11. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balance remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2020:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 4,550 $ 49,183
Capital Projects Fund 49,183
Fiduciary Funds -
Flex Spending Trust 4,550
$ 53,733 $ 53,733

The interfund receivable in the General Fund due from Flex Spending Trust is for a payment that was advanced
during the year. The interfund payable from the General Fund due to the Capital Projects fund is for Capital Reserve
funds owed to the Capital Projects fund.

NOTE 12. TAX CALENDAR

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the previous calendar year. The tax levy is
divided into two billings. The first billing is an estimate of the current year's levy based on the prior year's taxes. The
second billing reflects adjustments to the current year's actual levy. The final tax bill is usually mailed on or before
June 14th, along with the first half estimated tax bills for the subsequent year. The first half estimated taxes are
divided into two due dates, February 1 and May 1. The final tax bills are also divided into two due dates, August 1
and November 1. A ten-day grace period is usually granted before the taxes are considered delinquent and there is an
imposition of interest charges. A penalty may be assessed for any unpaid taxes in excess of $10,000 at December 31
of the current year. Unpaid taxes of the current and prior year may be placed in lien at a tax sale held after December.
Taxes are collected by the constituent municipality and are remitted to the local school district on a predetermined,
agreed-upon schedule.
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NOTE 13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grant Programs

The school district participates in state and federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to program
compliance audits by grantors or their representatives. The school district is potentially liable for expenditures which
may be disallowed pursuant to terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items of
noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

Litigation

The District estimates that any potential claims against it resulting from litigation which would not be covered by
insurance would not materially affect the financial position of the District.

Encumbrances

At June 30, 2020, the District had the following encumbrances:

Total
General Capital Governmental
Fund Projects Fund Funds

$ 257,145 $ 18,840 $ 275,985
$ 257,145 $ 18,840  $ 275,985

The $18,840 of encumbrances in the Capital Projects Fund is committed.

NOTE 14. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

At June 30, 2020, the District had the following accounts payable:

District Contribution Total
General Subsequent to Capital Governmental
Fund Measurement Date Projects Fund Type-Activities
Vendors $ 71,236 $ 30,343 % 101,579
State of New Jersey $ 175,000 175,000
$ 71,236 $ 175,000 $ 30,343  $ 276,579

NOTE 15. TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL OUTLAY

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District transferred $20,905 to the capital outlay accounts which was
transferred for equipment and therefore did not require the approval from the County Superintendent.
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NOTE 16. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund)

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The District is in a “special funding situation”, as described in GASB Codification Section P50, in that OPEB
contributions and expenses are legally required to be made by and are the sole responsibility of the State of New
Jersey, not the District.

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other post-employment
(health) benefits for the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Education Plan. The State Health Benefit Local
Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-
as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the criteria in GASB
Codification Section P50. The State Health Benefits Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical,
prescription drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local education
employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by the
State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. According to N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State
provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years
or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following plans: the Teachers’
Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen
Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28,
2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire
with 25 years or more of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit obligations that are
provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits, if any, is the responsibility of the
individual education employers.

For additional information about the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Education Plan, please refer to the
Division’s  Comprehensive ~ Annual  Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/gash-notices-opeb.shtml.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2017, the plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 145,050
Active Plan Members 217,131
Total 362,181
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NOTE 16. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2017, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2018. The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This
actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.50%
TPAF/ABP PERS
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55 - 4.55% 2.15-4.15%
based on years based on age
of service
Thereafter 2.00 - 5.45% 3.15-5.15%
based on years based on age
of service

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience
studies for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2011 — June 30, 2014 for TPAF and PERS,
respectively.

100% of all retirees who currently have healthcare coverage are assumed to continue with that coverage. 100% of
active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement, having a coverage blend of 85% and 15% in
PPO and HMO, respectively.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female
Mortality Table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017
scale.  Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Health Annuitant
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality
table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using MP-2017 scale.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits and health maintenance organization
(HMO) medical benefits, trend rate is initially 5.8% and decreases to a 5.0% long term trend rate after eight years.
For self-insured post-65 PPO and HMO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For prescription drug benefits, the
initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long term rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future
years.
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NOTE 16. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Discount Rate

The discount rates for June 30, 2018 and 2017 were 3.87% and 3.58%, respectively, a change of +.29%. This
represents the municipal bond rate as chosen by the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The
source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Changes in the State’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability Associated with the District

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 24,711,493
Changes for Year:
Service Cost 1,005,021
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 910,877
Changes of Assumptions (2,448,728)
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (2,289,048)
Gross Benefit Payments by the State (570,590)
Contributions from Members 19,721
Net Changes (3,372,747)
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 21,338,746

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attributable to the District to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the District as of June 30, 2018,
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability
attributable to the District would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2018

At 1% At At 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.87%) (3.87%) (4.87%)
Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the District $ 25,226,742 $ 21,338,746 $ 18,248,191
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NOTE 16. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability Attributable to the District to Changes in the Healthcare Trend
Rate

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB Liability attributable to the District as of June 30, 2018,
calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed in this note, as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB
liability attributable to the District would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2018

1% Healthcare 1%
Decrease Cost Trend Rate Increase
Total OPEB Liability Attributable to
the District $ 17,637,716 $ 21,338,746 $ 26,233,499

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,090,199 as determined by the
State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. This expense and the related offsetting revenue are for
benefits provided by the State through a defined benefit OPEB plan that meets the criteria in GASB Codification
Section P50, in which there is a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB Codification Section P50, as the District’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability is $-0-,
there is no recognition of the allocation of the proportionate share of the deferred inflows and outflows of resources.
At June 30, 2018 the State had deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
associated with the District from the following sources:

Original
Amortization Deferred Deferred
Year of Period Outflows of Inflows of
Deferral in Years Resources Resources
Changes in Assumptions 2017 9.54 $ (2,591,951)
Changes in Assumptions 2018 9.51 (2,191,238)
$ -0- (4,783,189)
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience 2018 9.51 (2,071,402)
Changes in Proportion N/A N/A 148,952

$ 148952 $ (6,854,591)

N/A - Not Available
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NOTE 16. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (Cont’d)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Cont’d)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Total

2019 $ (844,658)
2020 (844,658)
2021 (844,658)
2022 (844,658)
2023 (844,658)

Thereafter (2,631,302)

$  (6,854,591)

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States and specifically in New Jersey has caused disruption of the District’s
normal financial operations. Though the impact on the District’s operations cannot be reasonably estimated at this
date, it is likely that there will be an impact on certain revenue in the General Fund other than state aid and the local
tax levy. Also, there have been additional operating expenses in the General Fund not planned for or expected at the
time of the adoption of the District’s 2020-21 budget related to COVID-19.

Additionally, the District’s cash flow in the Governmental Funds may be affected by the timing of the collection of
the District’s tax levy as well as certain State aid payments.

The District’s Food Service Enterprise Fund has been impacted by COVID-19 for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2021 as it is expected for the number of meals served to significantly decrease during the school year as a result of the
pandemic.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 5.66% as of June 30, 2018 to 6.28% as of June 30, 2019. The municipal bond rate
changed from 3.87% to 3.50%.

The morality rates utilized in the July 1, 2017 valuation were as follows: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on
the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for male and female active participants. For local employees,
mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future
improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the Conduent modified
2014 projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and
Female Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former
members. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future
improvements in mortality from 2012 to 2013 using Projection Scale AA and a generational approach based on the
Conduent modified 2014 projection scale thereafter. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were
based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward one year for females).

The morality rates utilized in the July 1, 2018 valuation were as follows: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee Mortality Table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and
101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality
table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and a 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the
base year of 2010 on a generational basis.  Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality
improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

B.TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 4.86% as of June 30, 2018 to 5.60% as of June 30, 2019. The municipal bond rate
changed from 3.87 to 3.50%.

The salary increases in the July 1, 2017 valuation are as follows: 2011-2026 — 1.55% - 4.55% and thereafter — 2% -

5.45%. The salary increases in the July 1, 2018 valuation were as follows: Through 2026 — 1.55% - 4.45% and
thereafter — 2.75% - 5.65% — varies based on experience.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

B.TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (Cont’d)

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions (Cont’d)

The morality rates utilized in the July 1, 2017 valuation were as follows: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on
the RP-2006 Employee White Collar Mortality Tables, set back 3 years for males and 5 years for females, projected
on a generational basis from a base year of 2006 using a 60 year average of improvement rates based on Social
Security data from 1953 to 2013. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Healthy Annuitant
White Collar Mortality Tables, with adjustments as described in the latest experience study, projected on a
generational basis from a base year of 2006 using a 60 year average of improvement rates based on Social Security
data from 1953 to 2013. Disabled mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables with
rates adjusted by 90%. No mortality improvement is assumed for disabled retiree mortality.

The morality rates utilized in the July 1, 2018 valuation were as follows: Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-
retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

C. STATE HEALTH BENEFIT LOCAL EDUCATION RETIRED EMPLOYEES OPEN PLAN

Benefit Changes

There were none.

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate changed from 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2018.
The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2017 were based on the following:

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female
Mortality Table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using MP-2017 scale.
Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Health Annuitant Male/Female
mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.
Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully
generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale.

The mortality rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2018 were based on the following:

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee Male/Female
Mortality Table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017
scale.  Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Health Annuitant
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality
table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year using MP-2017 scale.
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C.STATE HEALTH BENEFIT LOCAL EDUCATION RETIRED EMPLOYEES OPEN PLAN (Cont’d)

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions (Cont’d)

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2017 were based on the following:

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9% and decreases
to a 5.0% long term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post 65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%.
For health maintenance organization (HMQO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0%
long term rate after eight years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long
term rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage
trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years.

The health care trend rates in the valuation as of June 30, 2018 were based on the following:

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits and health maintenance organization
(HMO) medical benefits, trend rate is initially 5.8% and decreases to a 5.0% long term trend rate after eight years.
For self-insured post-65 PPO and HMO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For prescription drug benefits, the
initial trend rate is 8.0% decreasing to a 5.0% long term rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future
years.

Page 79



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

Page 80



T69'78G'C 8T.'/26'LT L20'EvE'ST 120'EvE'ST SANNINTY TV1O0L
€ee'6er'e 98/'798'C €Gv'SeY €GY'SEY $821N0S 31eS [e10 |
022'e9y 022'€9y (pa18bpng-uop - pasinguiiay) suonngriuo) A114n2aS [eI190S 4vdl
9sT'T 9GT'T (pe19Bpng-uoN - Jleyag-uQ) asueinsuj Ajigesig wial BuoT 4vd.L
88T'CC 88T'¢e (pa18bpng-uoN - Jjeyag-uQ) adueinsuj A10INqLIU0D-UON 4V d.L
2Ly L9y 2Ly'19y (pa1eBpng-UoN - J[eyag-uQ) SUOHNQLILOD JUBLIBINGY 1S0d 4V d L
906°/€2'T 906°L€2'T (pa196png-uou) suonngrIuo) uoisuad 4vd.l
LYE Lve p1y uoirenodsuel] d1jgnd-uoN
¥¥0°'L€2 ¥v0°LE2 pIVY S1S0D uoneanp3 [e10ads Aleulpioenx3
1116V LL1'6Y 1116V pIv uoieuodsuel] [ealiobare)d
8/9'TE 8/9'TE 8/9'TE pIY A1n2ss [ealiofiare)
866'€GE 866'€5E 866'€GE Pl Uoljeanp3 [e10ads [eaniobiere)
:$921N0S A1L1S
8GE'GST 2€6'290'ST ¥.5'206'YT ¥.5'206'YT $824N0S |ed07 - [e10L
8G9'T9 859'T6 000'0€ 000'0€ SNoaue||adsIN
000'T 000'T 000'T spun4 anJasay [ende)d uo pauted 1saiaiu]
(Tog's) 8TL'TY 6T0'LY 6T0'LY S.\v31 4840 woid
10066 $ TELTWY 0€L'ere 0€L'ere S|enpIAIpu] wol4
:uoning
GZ8'98y'yT ¢  GZ8'98y'vT GZ8'98y'vT % AneT xe] [e207]
:$304N0S [2907]
:SANNIATY
[en1oy 01 Jeulq [enoy 196png slajsuel] 196png
doueLIRA leui4 19bpng [euibLio
0202 '0€ INNC A3AN3T VIA 1VOSIH IHL 504
ANN4 TVYd3IN3IO
SISVd AdV139dNg - 3 TNAIHIOS NOSIJdVJINOD AdVv.139dNnd
1014d1S1d TOOHJOS 1S3dVvINId 40 HONOJ049
¢riot

T-0 Haiyx3

Page 81



000'S 000'S 000'S
000°€ 000'c 000
000'C 000°C 000'C
002'2T 12v'C6 129'70T 8TL'L 606'96
ST ST 0S€ 0Se
¥9T'0T 922'v1 06£'vC (g55'2) G¥6'92
T98'T €TT'0C v16'12 0009 v16'ST

€16'LS €16'LS €26'C 066'€S
2S0'T0E GE8'608'Y /880TT'S 88.'11 660'€€0'S
ave's ¥61'S ovs's ovrs's
6TT 189'C 008'c 008'c
182'6L 050'62€ T€E'80Y 01629 T2 ove
GIT'C 12€'602 20S'TTC 20S'TTC
805'C 2S00t 0952y T 098'T 002'0vT
000'9 0009 000'9
¥6v'6€ 98¢g'eeT 088'2.T 088'2.T
099'2 099'2 099'2
128 €20'T 058'T 0S8'T
058'2S 6IS'VEY'T 69€'/87'T 009°C 69.'78¥'T
098'80T GGE'CL6'T GT2'180'C €e0'ey Z8T'6€0'C
282 6TG'STE T08'STE (oogTv'ee)  $  9TZ'SSE
0992 62.'99¢ $ 68£'69¢ 68£'69¢ $
|en1oy 0} Jeuly lemoy 19bpng siajsuel | 19bpng

aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0202 "0€ INNF A3IANT dV3IA TVOSId IHL J04
«NRERNZENER]
SISVE AdV139dN4g - ITNATHIS NOSIHVdAINOD AdV13I9Ddng
1D0141S1d TOOHDS 1S34dvINId 40 HONOYO04d

¢riog

T-0 Haiyx3

uonoNJISU| SWOH [e10 1
SAINIBS [BUOIBINPT - [BUOISSBJO0Id Paseyaind
s1ayoea] JO sallejes
:U01INASU| BWOH
esig abenbue] Jo/pue Bulures 210 L
$193[q0 48410
sa1jddng [essuss
uonNIISU| J0} SaLIeeS JBYI0
slayoea] Jo sallejes
:sanjigesig sbenbue] Jojpue Buiuies]
:uonINJIsu| - uoieanp3 Jerdads

uononisu| - swelboid Jejnbay e1o0L

s109ldo BYIo
SYO0IXa 1
saljddns [essuan
(sa118s 00G-00%) SIJIAIBS paseyaind JBYl0
S3JINIBS [eI1UY23] paseydind
S9OIAJIBS [BUOITRINPT - [BUOISSA0Id Paseydind
uonoNsu| 1o} saLefes Y10
:Uo1dNAISU| paINgLISIpuN - swelbold Jejnbay
S3JIAJIBS [BUOITRINPT - [BUOISSA0Id Paseydind
slayoes] Jo saliefes
:u019NJISU| BWOH - sweibold Jejnbay
Slayoea] JO saliefes - 8-9 saprio
S1aydea] Jo Salrefes - G-T sapeio
Slayoea] Jo saliefes - uslrebiapuryy
Slayoea] JO saLefes - jooydsald
:uonansuj - swelbold Jejnbay
‘ISNIAXT LNIHHND
‘SFANLIANIdX3

Page 82



SvE'6 982'c6 1£9°20T 1£9'20T UoIONIISU| - SANIAIDY JR[NJLLINJ0Y Palosuods-|ooyos (8101
000'T 000'T 000'T $108[00 48410
28¢ 8TIT'T 00S'T 00S'T s[eLateN pue sarjddng
000‘T 000‘T 000‘T (sa113s 00G-00E) S8IAISS paseyaind
€96'9 89726 TET'66 TET'66 saliefes
:U0NONISU] - SSNIAIDY JBJNd1IN20)) paiosuods-jooyos
0S6'T 82508 8/1'c8 8.1'z8 uonodnsu| - uoneanp3 fenbullig [ejoL
€eT €eT 6] GET $103[q0 48410
68L'T 9/2'S G90°L G90°L sa1jddng [eJaua0
65T 99 144 G¢¢ (sa118S 00S-00¥) S83IAIBS paseyaind JaylQ
4 €G0'G. GG0'G.L 4 €G0'GL sIayoea ] JO salrefes
:uondNSU| - uoieanp3 enbuljlg
65¢'S 2.0'92e TEE'TEC TEE'TEC UoIINASU| - [eIPaWaY/S|[INS 2Iseq €101
06 06 06 $103[00 J83y10
Viv'T 99'y 02T'9 02T'9 saljddng [essuss
G69'E 9zv'1ee QAN AR T4 SIayoea | Jo salrees
:U0NONIISU| - [e1paLaY/S|[INS d1seq
9G€'eST 12L°90T'T €80'092'T (Ts¥'vT) ¥€S'vL2'T uononsu| uoleanpg [e1oads [e10L
9GT'9eT 00€VT0'T 9G¥'0ST'T (691'22) G29'elT'T J8]Ua) 834N0S8Y/W00Y 83IN0SaY [e10 L
(012174 00T 08s 089 SY00gIX3 L
8€6 L1€'8 GSZ'6 GSZ'6 saljddng [essusn
80%'0TT 86€'TTZ 908'TeE (000'9) 908'/2€ uonoNIIsu| Joj saLefes Jaylo
0ee've $ S8v'v6. G18'8T8 $ (691'97) $ ¥86'7€8 $ Siaydes | JO Salejes
1181U8D 82N0SaY/WI00Y 821N0SaY
:ASNIdX3 LNIHIND
'S3HNLIAN3IdX3
[en)oy 01 Jeulq [enoy 196png slajsuel] 196png
aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0202 '0€ INNC A3ANT YVIA 1vOSIH IHL J04
aNN4 TVY3INIO
SISVd AdV139dNg - 3 TNAIHIOS NOSIJdVJINOD AdVv.139dNnd
12141S1d TOOHDJS 1S3dVINIA 40 HONOJO4d
¢rijoe

T-0 Haiyx3

Page 83



€9¢'L 00¢'vee €95'TVC Svl'q 818'GEC S30IAJSS UiJeaH [e10L
€96'¢C 20E'Y g9z’ S92’ s|eusieN pue saijddng
G/1 G/1 G/T (s3118s 005-00%) SPAIAIBS PaseydInd Jaylo
809 ZrT's 099'S 099'S S9JIAISS [eJ1UYyda | pue [euolssajold paseydind
JAVA 9G6/'v2e €lv'82e Gvl's 8¢l'eee Seliejes
:S90IAJIBS Ul[esH
€ Ggl'9g 8¢.'9¢ €8¢'T Gyy'Ge MIOAN [R190S pue 82UBPUSNY |R10 L
T Z9T'T €9T'T €9T'T S30IAIBS [BDIUYDB | PUB [BUOISSBJ0.d PaseydIng
4 €95'Ge G9G'Ge 0ct Gvy'Ge Saliefes
}JOAN [B100S pue 3ouBpUSNY
9/¥'792 GEY'269 T16'956 T16'956 uononuIsu| - saunipuadx3 painguIsipun (0L
288'S 62.'T0C 119202 119202 81elS ayl UIYUAA - pajgesid 8} 10} SJooydS 8jeAlid 0} uonin |
765852 90L'06% 00€'6¥7L 00£'6Y.L [21030S - 8781 38U UIYHAA ST T J8Y10 03 uopIn L
:uonanisuj
:sainiipuadx3 paingrasipun
9TE'T6Y 022'LL€'9 9€56'898'9 LEE'€9 661'G08'9 uononasuj [ejoL
T/0'LT 09T'cY 1€2'09 1€2'09 suonesadQ / seBold $801AI9S Anunwiwo) [eloL
690'LT 006't 696'TC (Te) 000'22 (saui8s 00G-00€) SNBSS paseydInd
4 092'8¢ 292'8¢e TE T€2'8E saliejes
:suoneIadQ / sweibold s8d1AIBS Alunwiwio)
€8¢'e Z19'.T G68'02 G68'0¢ uonoansu| - SON3JYIY Pa1osuods-jooyas [e1oL
0.€ 08¢ 0S. 0S. $103[00 48410
680'T 9eT 622’1 G2'T sfeLiale|y pue satjddns
¥Z8'T $ GlT'CS 666' (1) 000'S (81185 00G-00€) S9INISS paseyaind
TZ6'ET TZ6'ET T $ 026°€T $ Soliefes
:UoNdNIISU| - SONBJYIY PaJjosuods-100yds
:ISN3IdX3 LNIFHHND
'S3HNLIAN3IdX3
|en1oy 0} Jeuly lemoy 19bpng siajsuel | 19bpng
aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0¢0¢ '0€ INNC AIANT dV3IA TVvISId IHL HO4
aNN4 TVY3INIO
SISVd AdV139dNg - 3 TNAIHIOS NOSIJdVJINOD AdVv.139dNnd
12141S1d TOOHDJS 1S3dVINIA 40 HONOJO4d
crioy

T-0 Haiyx3

Page 84



swea | Apmis plIyo [elo L
519300 Jay10
s|eriale pue saijddnsg
(s8118s 00G-00%) S89INIBS paseyaind Jaylo
S9IAJSS [BOIUYID ] PUB [BUOISSBJ0Id PaseydInd JByi0
SAINIBS [BUOIBINPT - [BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind
saLlees JByl0
SJUBISISSY [BILIB]D PUR [B1IL18IIDS JO SaLIefes
JJBIS [BUOISSB)0Id JBYIO JO SalIefes
'swes | Apms ppyo

a0uepINg [e10 |

$193[q0 18uro
S[eusie pue saljddng
(S8118s 00S-00%) S82IAIBS Paseydind Jay1Q
SRIINISS [BI1UYID] PUB [BUOISSBJ0Id PaseydInd Jayl0
S3IINIBS [BUOIBINPT - [BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind
SJUBISISSY [BILIB]D PUB [B1IL181I3S JO Saliefes
JJeIS [BUOISS)01d JBYIO JO SalIefes
:803UBpIND

S30IAIRS AleulploelIX3 - SIUBPNIS - SAJIAIRS 1oddns JaylO 810 L
S9IINISS [BUOIBINPT - [BUOISSBJO0Id Paseydind
saLiefes

:S801INJBS AJeulpioesIX3 - SJUBPNIS - $8d1AJI8S 1oddns Jaylo

$90IAIBS pare|ey 9 1d ‘10 ‘yosads eol
199100 Jaylo
s[eusie| pue saijddns
S9JIAJISS [euol)eanp3 - euolssajold paseyaind
sallees
:S9IAIBS pate|ey % 1d ‘10 ‘yosads
:sainypuadx3 pawnguisipun
-3SN3IdX3 LNIHHND
‘S3HNLIANIdX3

GGS'69 v.12'sey 628'79G 628'795
882 r6'T 0£2'C 0€2'C
619 162'9 0/0'€T (059) 029'€T
678'T 199'€ 0T5'S 0SS 096't
8ee 29T'e 00S'€ 00S'€
vIe'ey 989'89 000'2TT 000'ZTT
0€0°2T 0.T 002'2T (008'2) 000'ST
T4 888'69 €T0'0L €10'0L
ze8'y YLV TYE 90£'9vE 0082 905'€VE
6T.'8 0L2'€8T 687267 687267
90¥ v1¢ 029 029
% 928 G/8 G/8
g9 Gg 00T 00T
¥8T'T 9T8'0T 000'2T 000'2T
000'S 000'S 000'S
14 820'92 0€0'92 820'92
€102 TS8'GHT ¥98'L¥T @ $ 998'/¥T
G06'06 892'86¢ €/T'68€ €/T'68€
6ET'SY T98'7ST 000002 000'002
99/'Gy LOV'EVT €.T'68T €.T'68T
6SC'TL e8y'zey ZvL'e6y ZvL'e6y
152 65C'T 0TS'T 0TS'T
€156 ze8'y SPE'YT GYE'YT
ovl'ey ¥G62'9ZT 000'0.LT 000'0.T
6v2'LT $ 8ET'062 188'20¢ 188'20¢ $
|en1oy 0} [eulq lenoy 19bpng slajsuel | 19bpng
aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0¢0¢ '0€ INNC d3ANT dVIA 1VOSIH IHL 504
[ \RERYZEENER)
SISVE A4V 13IOang - 3 1NA3IHIS NOSIEVANOD Adv.L3aoang
1O1d1SI1d TO0OHJS 1S3AVINIA 40 HONOYJ0d
Zrjos

T-0 Haiyx3

Page 85



2€8'0¢ 8.€CT oTZ'ey otZ'sy
0ST'T 0ST'T 0ST'T
298'T 82¢9 06T'8 06T'8
0zT'se 0G.'S 0.8'0€ 0.8'0€
00.°C 00€ 000°€ 000°€
(Y44 rv'v6 €.8'96 €.8'96

q9 q9 G99
170 T.C'Y 88¢'9 88¢'9
00¢ 00¢ 00¢
Z1e 88.'C 000°¢ 000°€

0ce’'l8 0ze’'l8 0zg'./8
Yrv'vs 2LL'16 9T2'2ST 9T2'2ST
26T'T 80€ 00S'T 00G'T
6T Ly oy 174 00¢
050 056 000‘€ 000‘€
16 £€99'C ¥6.'C (9v2) $ 000€
6269 181'9¢2 0T.'eE 0T.'eE
€9T'vy $ €79'99 908°0TT $ 908'0TT $
[enjoy 01 Jeuld [enoy 196png slajsuel ] 196png

aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0¢0¢ "'0€ ANNC A3IANT ¥VIA TVOSId FHL HO4
aNN4d Tvd3IN3O
SISVA AdVv.139dNd - 3TNAIHIS NOSIHdVdNOD AdVLI9dNd
12141S1d TO0HJS 1S3dVIN3A 40 HONOYO4d

1409

T-0 Haiyx3

S90IAJSS Bulurel] JJeis jeuononisuj 210 L
S[eusre| pue saijddng
(sa118s 00S-001) S89IAISS paseyaind J8yl0
S30IAIBS [BUOITRINPT - [eUOISSaJ0Id Paseydind
saliejes Jsy1o
:S90IAJIBS Bulures ] JJe1s [euonansul
AJelgi] [00U9S/S90IAIRS BIPSIAl [eUOITeINPT 2101
199100 Jaylo
S[eusie| pue saijddng
(sa118s 00S-001) S89IAISS paseyaind J8Yl0
SROIAJIDS [BIIUYID | pUe [RUOISS30Id pPaseydind
salie[es
:AlelqiT |00YIS/Sa0IAIBS BIPSIAl [euoireanps
S32IAIDS [eUONdNIISU| JO Juswanoidw] [e1o |
$199[qo J8ylo
S[eusie| pue saijddng
(sa18s 00S-001) S89IAISS paseyaind Jsyl0
S9OIAIBS [B2IUYD3 ] pUe [BUOISS30Id Paseyaind Jay10o
S90IAISS [eUOIIBINPT - [RUOISSAJ0.d Paseydind
1JeIS [eu0Issa)o.d JaylO Jo saliefes
1S90IAIBS [BUOIONIISU] JO 1uBWaA0dw|
:sain)Ipuadx3 painquisipun
‘ISNIAXT LNIHHND
‘S3FANLIANIdX3

Page 86



926'6 809'€CE yES'cee (00z'1) IR
092 orz'T 00S'T 00S'T
€02'T 1607 00g'S 008'T 00S'€
vze's 98e'Te 0T.'6€ (0oo0'e) 0TL'ZV
6ET G88'982 20182 ¥20'182
986'C 259'vey 8£9'L2y 002'T 8ey'ozy
T.T 895'C 6EL'C (192) 000'€
¥89'T 11522 G6T'VC (soz'y) 00%'8¢2
68¢ G9S'y ¥G6'y (9gL'¢) 069'8
z ZTT'v0T ¥TT'v0T r4 ZTT'v0T
ov. 968'062 9£9'T62 007’6 9£2'282
180'G2 168765 8/6'6TY ove'LE 8£.'78¢

060°L 060°2 06 000
187 6399'T 00.'T (008) 00S'2

000'ST 000'ST 000'ST
9 762 00€ (002) 00S
102 8/.'s G86'S (008) G8/'9
Zr8 84G'e 00%'y (oot'9) 00S°0T
€9 LET'Y 002'y (00g'e) 005",
8.¢ 2LT've 08512 (008'T) 0S€'92
¥28'1 9.T'L 000'6 (000'%) 000'€T
00S'T 00S'T (00s'eT) 000'GT

00S'.T 00S'.T 0052 000'ST
162'9T 60T'SY 00%'6S 00¥'8¢ 00012
GEB'E $ 8T¥'soe £5£'69¢ $ 0GL'TT $ €09'/52C $
|en1oy 0} [eulq lenoy 19bpng slajsuel | 19bpng

aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0¢0¢ '0€ INNC d3ANT dVIA 1VOSIH IHL 504
aNNd IvEaNIo
SISVE Adv139adng - I1NA3HIS NOSIIVANOD Adv13Ioadng
1O141S1d TOOHDJS 1SFEVINIA 40 HONOYOod

2T40.

T-0 Haiyx3

S3OIAIRS [eAUBD) [B10 |

sainlipuadx3 snoaue||adsIiAl
s[eusiel pue saijddns
(Sa118s 00G-00%) SIIAISS PaseydInd SNosue||dsIA
saLiefes
'SRIINISS [eNU3D

UoneISIUILPY [00YdS - $891AJ8S 1oddns [e10 1

199100 J8Ylo

s[euste| pue saijddng

(sa118s 00S-00%) S92IAIBS paseyaind Jaylo

SJUEISISSY [BI1IB]D PUE [1JE]8IIDS JO SalIe[eS

sfedioulld JueisIsSy//s[edioulid Jo saliefes
:uoneJISIuIWpPY 00yYds - sadIAes Hoddns

UONEBASIUILPY [2JBURS) - $30IAIBS Moddng [e10. 1

$994 pue sanq diysiequisiN 309
sainipuadx3 snoaue||aasI
1911S1@ |00Y9S 3y) 1surehy siuawbpne
saljddng Bunas|A / Bulurel ] ssnoH-uj 309
saljddns Jessuss
(s8118s 00G-001) S89IAISS Paseydind Snoaue|dasIAl
$9JIAIBS Paseyaind JBy1o 309
auoyda|a_L/SuoneauNWWo)
S3OIAIBS [BUOISS3)0Id Paseyaind 1Byl
$891AI3S BungauIbul / [edn1osnydIy
994 1PNy
S89IAJAS [eba]
sallejes
:UoNBNSIUILPY [2I8UD) - $33IAIBS Loddng

:sain)Ipuadx3 painquisipun

‘ISNIAXT LNIHHND

‘S3FANLIANIdX3

Page 87



188761 G60°9G. 9/6'0S6 (062°29) 99/'800°'T
0S¢’y 0SL 000‘G 000°‘S
G60'S G06'C 000'8 000'8
0LT'oY 0€8'%S 000'S6 000'S6
L0T'L2 €68'¢eT 000'0ST 000'0ST
8z/l'se TAXAA 00096 00096
099°C 0GG'STT 0TZ'8TT (062'1€) 000°0ST
S9v'8T G€0'6¢C 00S‘LYy 00S‘LYy
02T'vT 088'y 000'6T 000'6T
€ LSS'TC 095'TC 09S'T 000°0C
€82'/S gTr'eee 90.°06€ (095'22) 99Z'8TY
0.2'22 00T'0L¢ 0.£26¢ 000°c€e 0.£'69¢
6SL'T 9/2'0€ Ge0‘ze (se) 0.0'z€
6.€'ST 12T'0T 005'G2 00S'G¢e
TeT'S G8O‘TTT 9T2'9TT 912'T¢ 000'G6
T 8T9'8TT 6T9'8TT 618'T $ 0089TT
08S'T 0zZv'T 000‘€ 000°€
08S'T 0zv'T 000‘€ $ 000°'c $
[enjoy 01 Jeuld [enoy 196png slajsuel ] 196png
aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0202 '0€ INNC AIANT dV3IA TvOSId IHL 804
aNN4d Tvd3IN3O
SISVA AdVv.139dNd - 3TNAIHIS NOSIHdVdNOD AdVLI9dNd
12141S1d TO0HJS 1S3dVIN3A 40 HONOYO4d
¢1josg

T-0 Haiyx3

S$32IAIBS [e1p0ISND €101

s109lq0 J8Y10
(aurjoses)) Abieug
(seo |eamenN) ABisug
(An91410813) ABisug
saljddns Jeseuso
aoueINSU|
$90IAIRS Aliadold paseyaind Jaylo
S8IINIBS 8oURUBIUIRIN pue Jreday ‘Bulues|)
SOPIY [UOIIONIISU|-UON JO SaLiefes
sale[es
'SAIIAIBS [eIp0ISND

31311198 |00YDS JO 3oUBUBIUIRIN Palinbay [e10 1

$193[q0 Jaypo
saijddns Jessuss
S9IINIBS BoURUBIUIRIA pUE Jreday ‘Bulues|D
saLiefes
:Sa1M|1984 [00YIS JO douRUBUIRIA palinbay

ABOJOUY98 ] UOITRLIOIU] BAITRASIUILPY [€10 ]
SIIIAISS [91UYD ] paseyaind
:ABojouUY23 | UONEBWIOLU]| SANRASIUILPY
:samipuadx3 panguisipun
-3SN3IdX3 LNIHHND
‘S3YNLIANIdX3

Page 88



£70'8Y €€1'GGT 9/1'€02 9/1'€02
059 0S¢ 000'T 000'T
0002 0002 0002
056'€Z 0S0'TT 000'GE 000'GE

000'02T 000'02T 000'0ZT
TEY'8 6959 000'ST 000'ST
269'S 80¢ 0009 0009
€68't 1092 00S'2 00S'2
L2l €12 000'T 000'T
00.'T 00£'2 000'y (000'T) 000'G

9/2'2T 9/2'2T 000'T 9/2'1T
opE'TT ¥59'Gh 000'.G 000'.SG
697 TES'YT 000'ST 000't 000'TT
0S8 0ST'6 000°0T 000'0T
120'0T €16'12C 000'2€ (000'v) 000'9€
25162 9£6'6. 880'60T 000'9T 880'€6
216 889'C 000'ZT 000'ZT
9Gy'9T 68.'C GZ'6T (gs2'T) 000'T2
¥8e'e $ 6Sh'YTL €v8'LL $ §G.'.T $ 880'09 $
|en1oy 0} [eulq lenoy 19bpng slajsuel | 19bpng

aoueLIeA leui4 18bpng feulbLio
0¢0Z '0€ INNC dIANT dVIA 1VISId IHL J04
dNN4 TvY3NaD
SISVE A4V 13IOang - 3 1NA3IHIS NOSIEVANOD Adv.L3aoang
1O141S1d TOOHDJS 1SFEVINIA 40 HONOYOod

iT406

T-0 Haiyx3

S30IAJSS UoleIOdsURI | JUSpNIS |20 |

199100 8Yl0

saijddng Jessuso
Sjuapnis 21jgnduon - sjuawiAed JO nalT ul piy
S1UBWaIBY JUlor - SIUBPNIS UoieINp3 Jel1dads
S)uawaalfy JUIO[ - |00YIS PUB SWOH Usamiag
SIOPUAA - [00UIS pue SWOH Udsmiag ueyl JBYi0

:S9INIBS PaloBIIL0D

S9OIAISS douRUBIUIRIA pue Jleday ‘Bulues|d

SBIINIBS [BI1UYID | PUE [BUOISSBJ0Id PaseydInd Jayi0
Je|nBay - |00YIS pue SWOH Udamiag Uey] JBYi0
Jejnfiay - |00YIS pue BWOH UsaMmiag

:uoneyodsuel ] [1dnd Joj salees

:S901AJ8S Uonelodsuel ] Juspnis

Anoes |eyo L
saijddns Jessuss
SBIIAIBS [BJIUYID ] PUE [BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind
S9IIAIBS doURUBIUIRIA pue ‘Jreday ‘Bulues|d
:A1nJas

spunois jo dasxdn pue aed [elo ]
saljddns Jessuss
S30IAISS ddURUBIUIRI pue ‘Uredsy ‘Bulues|d
sallejes
:spunou9) Jo deaydn pue aled
:saun)ipuadx3 paInquIsipun
‘ASNIdX3T LNFHHEND
'S3HNLIANIdX3

Page 89



ASNIdXT LINFHIND TVHINID TV1O0L
sasuadx3 panquisipun 810

suyauag asAojdwig - S30INIBS [UOSIad [€10 L

SUONNGLIUOD J[EUYag-UQ [E10L

(pa1ebpng-UoN - pasinguiiay) suonNQLIUCY A1LINJ3S [190S 4V d L
(pa1ebpng-uoN - Jjeyag-uQ) aouensuj Aujigesig waal Buo 4vdl
(pa1abpng-uoN - Jjeyag-uQ) aduelnsuj A10INgLIU0D-UON 4Vvd.L
(pe18Bpng-UoN - Jeyag-uQ) SUoNNQLIU0D JUsWAINGY 150d 4V d 1

65y 7€€'66T'9T £88'€YZ'9T (506'02) 88/'%92'9T
(£92'9tp) ¥11'228'6 LV€'GLE'6 (zve'v8) 685'65'6
(€20'z6€'T) 9/2'208'y £G62'0TY'e (022'60T) €/6'615'€
(zv6'16T'2) Zv6'T6T'C
(0zz'e9r) 022'€9¥
(9sT'T) 9GT'T
(881'22) 887'22
(z2v'19Y) LYoy
(906'2£2'T) 906'/€2'T

676'66. 7€€'019'C €G2'0TY'e (02.'60T) €/6'6T5'C

€9T'8 L€8 000'6 000'6

€62'T 6EE'09 Z€9'19 zeT'e 00%'8S

89/'T 000'0T 89/'TT (zez'e) 000'ST

€8T'/T. 025'080'2 €0.'16L'2 (025'v8) €12'288'C

18S'T €T7'88 00006 (0oo0'zT) 000°20T

695'9T 1€1'82 00g'SP 00€'SY

12Ty £18'cT 000'82 000'82

GZv'6 GZy'LGT 058'99T (0ST'€T) $ 000'08T

¥08'6¢ $ 96T'09T $ 000002 000002 $

|en1ay 0} Jeuly lemoy 18bpng sJajsuel | 18bpng

doueLIeA leui4 196png euibLIO
0¢0Z '0€ INNC dIANT JV3IA 1VISId IHL J04
dNN4 TvY3NaD
SISVE Adv139adng - I1NA3HIS NOSIIVANOD Adv13Ioadng
12141S1d TOOHDJS 1S3dVINIA 40 HONOYOod

ZT4001

T-0 Haiyx3

(pa1abpng-uou) suonngIUOD UoISUsd 4V dL
‘suonngLIu0D Jleyag-uo

suyauag aaAkojdwi3 paledojeun [e10 1L

JBIS paliiay/pareulwa] 03 JuswAed %dIS pasnun
siyauag sakoldw3 Jayl0
BWIBSINqWIaY uonin
sHjauag YyesH
uolresuadwo) s,usWxION
uonesuadwo) wawAojdwaun
Jenfay - suonnguIU0YD JUBWAINRY Y10
SY3d - SUOANQLIUOD JusWaINSY JaYlo
suonnqLiuo) A1Indas [e100s
:sljauag 9aAojdw3 paredojeun

:saInyipusdx3 paingLisipun

-3ASN3IdX3 LNIHHND

:S3YNLIANIIX3

Page 90



S3JNLIAN3IdX3 V10l
AV11NO TVL1IdVvO V101l

(pa1abpng-uou) saseaT Jende) Japun palinbay S18ssY |10 L
asea Jaido)
:(pa1ebpng-uou) sesea jeude) Japun paiinbay s18ssy

S30IAJSS UOIANASUOD puUR Uonisinboy sanijioed 2101

Buipund wQs Uo 891AJ8S 199 10} JUBLUSSASSY
[edioulid - Sluswaalby 8seydind ases
s[eusIeN 72 saljddng
SIAIBS UOIINIISUOD
SRIINISS [BIIUYID] PUB [BUOISSBJ0Id PaseydInd Jayl0
$921AJ8S BunigsuIbug / [ean1osuydly

:S30IAJSS UOIINISUOD pue uonisinbay san|ioe

wawdinb3 je101
A1ndss
S3OINIBS [eAIUD
ABojouyda | oju] uofeASIUIWLPY
juswdinb3 reuonanasul
:sainypuadx3 painguisipun
8-9 sopelo
J00Yydsald
:uononasuj - swelbold Jejnfbiay
:;uswdinbg
‘AV1LNO TVLIdvO
‘S3YNLIAN3IdX3

£65'6.Y T112'119'9T ¥98'0GT /T ¥98'0GT /T
rv0'se LE6'LLY 186216 G06'02 9/0'268
(870'08) 870'08
(810'08) 87008
GG8'/SY 8TT'€0E £16'09L €16'09L
Z8¢'s Z8¢'s Z8¢'s
T67'€9 06092 18G'/2€ (0TT'981) T69'€TS
¥90'T 9£6'9 000'8 000'8
000'0GT 000'0ST 000'0ST
078 078 018
00£'€vZ 006'G2 002'692 00£'G8T 006'€8
102'1S T08'76 800'25T G06'02 €OT'TET
orT £99'28 £08'28 00.'8T €0T'v9
000'L 000'L 000°2
(000'2) 000°L
6¥ 95T'Z 802'C 5022 $
8T0'vC 786'6 000'€ 000'7€
00092 $ 00092 $ 00092 $
|en1oy 0} JeulS |en1oy 18bpng siajsuel | 18bpng
doueLIeA leui4 196png euibLIO
020Z '0€ INNC AIANT JVIA 1VISId IHL J04
CARERNEENER)
SISVE AdvV13odng - ITNAIHIS NOSIAVANOD AUV LIoaNng
IO141SId TOOHDS 1SFYVINIA 40 HONOYO0d
ZTi0TT

T-0 Haiyx3

Page 91



(dvVv9) spun4 [eluswuianos Jad aouejeg pun4

siseg d'vO U0 paziuboaay 10U SjuswAed pIy a1els 1se

((dVYV9) UsWalelS Spun4 [BIUBWIUIAAOS) 0} UOIY

19U029Y
(Are1obpng) aouepeg pun4 |e10L

paubisseun
020z ‘T 1snbny - 0202 ‘T AInC sadnyipuadx3 s Jea A

juanbasgns oy pareubisaq - souejeg pun paubissy [euonIppPY

sainupuadx3 sJes A usnbasgns
S90URIQWINIUT pUT-Jea A
:paubissy
anIasay [ended
sain)ipuadx3 s,Jea A Juanbasqns Jo4 - snjding ssaax3
snjding ssaox3
:paroLIsey
“610¢ 'O aunr 1e souejeg pund JO uone[mideday

0€ aunp ‘aauefeg pund
T AInc ‘aouejeg pund

sasn Buloueulq JayiQ pue sainyipuadx3 (Japun)/4en0

$824n0S Buloueul4 JaYlIO pue sanuanay Jo (Aousidlyaq)/ssaox3

T72'€2€'9 $
(£89's€)
826'85¢'9
18Y'v2S
06€'6Y
T€9'6ET
T AWATA
YeT'eLy'e
269'vSY'T
6Zr'09r'T  $
6SG'8YT'E  $ 876'8G€'9 ¢ 69€0TZE  $  -O- $ 69g'012't ¢
¥v6'9G0°S ¥v6'9G0'S ¥16'9G0'S
65G'87T'E ¥86'T0€'T (G2G'9%8'T) (5.5'918'T)
G/2'v8 1€S'TS (8e2'2e) (8eL'2e)
L00'T 100'T
0s2'e (88¥'62) (8e2'2e) (8eL'2e)
870'08 870'08
v8Z'v90'c $ Ivv'0ose'T  $ (Le8'eI8T)  $ -0- $ (Le8'€18'T) $
|en1oy 0} JeulS |en1oy 18bpng siajsuel | 18bpng
aouelle leuid 196png leulbLiO
020Z '0€ INNC AIANT JVIA 1VISId IHL J04
[« RERNCZENER)
SISVE AdvV13odng - ITNAIHIS NOSIAVANOD AUV LIoaNng
1O1491S1d 100HDJS 1S3dVINId 40 HONoYog
Zrioet

T-0 Haiyx3

(sasn)/saa4nos Buioueul4 JBY1O €101

pun4 [eJauas 01 pun4 s1aaloid [eaded wouy Jaysuel |

pun4 891AI8S P00 01 Jajsuel |
:(InO)ju| sJagsuel |
(pa1abpng-uop) sasea ended

:(sasn)/seaanos Buloueul4 Jsyro

sainupuadx3 (Japun)/Isn0 senuanay Jo (AousId1ya)/ssaax3

Page 92



-0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $
000°2LT 000°2LT 268'6€ 80T'LET
980'T 980'T 1€6 GST
980'T 980'T T€6 GqT
v16'SLT v16'GLT 196'8€ €G6'9€T
GBT'TT GBT'TT L1G'E 809/
6297 62797 ¥8¢'GE Gve'6eT
000°L.T 000°LLT 268'6€ 80T /€T
000'9.T 000'9.T 268'8€ 80T'LET $
000'T $ 000'T $ 000'T $

[en1oy 0] Jeuld [enoy 19bpng slajsuel | 19bpng

douBLIRA [euld 196png [euibLQ

¢-O Halyxg

020¢ '0€ AINNC AIANT ¥VIA TvISId IHL HO4

dNN4 INNIATY TVIO3IdS

SISVA AdV139dN4d - 371NAIHIS NOSIdVdAINOD AdV139dNd
10141S1d TO0HJS 1S34VINGA 40 HONOYO04

saimIpuadx3 JI8AQ SBNUBASY JO SS3IXJ
sainpuadx3 [e10L

S321AJ3S 1oddns [e10|
S[eLisre|A pue saljddng
:$92IAJ3S 1oddng

uonanAsu| [elo L
saljddng Jelsus
uoninl
:uonanJisu|
'SAINLIANIdX3

SONUAASY [©10 ]
$92N0S [e4apa-
$924N0S [2207]

‘S3INN3IANTH

Page 93



Exhibit C-3
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and

GAAP Revenues and Expenditures Special
General Revenue
Sources/Inflows of Resources: Fund Fund

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 17,927,718 $ 177,000
Difference - Budget to GAAP:

Prior Year State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements, not recognized for

budgetary purposes. 29,575
Current Year State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized for
GAAP statements. (35,687)

Total Revenues as Reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 17,921,606 $ 177,000

Uses/Outflows of Resources:

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Outflows" from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 16,677,271 $ 177,000

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 16,677,271 $ 177,000

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and debt service

funds. The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was submitted to the County office and was approved by a

vote of the Board of Education. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest

(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1.
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. All budgetary amounts
presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have
been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the
year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles, with the exception of the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental
records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The General Fund budgetary revenue differs from the GAAP revenue due to a difference in recognition of the last
two state aid payments for the current year. Since the State is recording the last two state aid payments in the
subsequent fiscal year, the District cannot recognize these payments in the GAAP financial statements.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Page 98



Exhibit F-1
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue and Other Financing Sources:
Investment Income $ 1,007

Total Revenue and Other Financing Sources 1,007

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Equipment Purchases 512,160
Transfers Out:

Transfer to General Fund - Investment Income 1,007

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 513,167

Deficit of Revenue and Other Financing Sources Under

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (512,160)
Fund Balance - Beginning 531,000
Fund Balance - Ending $ 18,840

Recapitulation of Fund Balance at June 30, 2020:

Committed:
Year-End Encumbrances $ 18,840
Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP) $ 18,840
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

MUSIC ROOM ADDITION AND MIDDLE SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue and Other Financing Sources:
Capital Lease Proceeds
Transfer from Capital Outlay

Total Revenue and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures:
Legal Services
Equipment Purchases

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number(s)
Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

Exhibit F-1a

Project

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Authorization
$ 1,030,000 $ 1,030,000 $ 1,030,000
181,000 181,000 181,000
1,211,000 1,211,000 1,211,000
20,000 20,000 20,000
660,000 $ 512,160 1,172,160 1,191,000
680,000 512,160 1,192,160 1,211,000
$ 531,000 $ (512,160) $ 18,840 $ -0-

#1070-040-18-1000
$ 1,211,000
98.44%
7/26/2019
9/30/2020
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Exhibit G-1
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 12,359
Inventory 1,524
Total Current Assets 13,883

Non-Current Assets:

Capital Assets 64,641

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (59,347)

Total Non-Current Assets 5,294

Total Assets 19,177
NET POSITION:

Investment in Capital Assets 5,294

Unrestricted 13,883

Total Net Position $ 19,177
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Exhibit G-2
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Operating Revenue:
Local Sources:

Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs $ 134,353
Total Operating Revenue 134,353
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 94,363
Salaries, Payroll Taxes & Benefits 65,576
Supplies and Materials 2,656
Depreciation Expense 662
Total Operating Expenses 163,257
Operating Loss (28,904)
Transfers - General Fund 29,488
Change in Net Position After Transfers 584
Net Position- Beginning of Year 18,593
Net Position- End of Year $ 19,177
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Exhibit G-3
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from Customers $ 134,353

Payments to Employees (65,576)

Payments to Vendors (95,450)

Payments to Suppliers (2,656)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (29,329)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Board Contribution 29,488
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 29,488
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 159
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 12,200
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 12,359

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss $ (28,904)
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used For Operating Activities:

Depreciation 662
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) in Inventory (1,087)

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities $  (29,329)
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ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Exhibit H-1

Accounts Receivable - Employee Contributions

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Interfund Payable - General Fund

Payroll Deductions
and Withholdings
Due to Student Groups
Total Liabilities
NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for:
Flex Spending Claims

Total Net Position

Agency Flex
Student Spending
Activity Payroll Total Trust
$ 87,067 $ 75,288 $ 162,355 1,995
4,550
87,067 75,288 162,355 6,545
4,550
75,288 75,288
87,067 87,067
87,067 75,288 162,355 4,550
1,995
$ -0- $ -0- $ -0- 1,995
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Exhibit H-2
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Flexible
Spending
Trust
ADDITIONS:
Contributions - Employee $ 4,550
Contributions - District 10,800
Total Contributions 15,350
Total Additions 15,350
DEDUCTIONS:
Flex Spending Claims 16,301
Total Deductions 16,301
Change in Net Position (951)
Net Position - Beginning of the Year 2,946
Net Position - End of the Year $ 1,995
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Exhibit H-3

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 48,384 69,579 30,896 87,067
Total Assets $ 48,384 69,579 30,896 87,067
LIABILITIES:

Due to Student Groups $ 48,384 69,579 30,896 87,067
Total Liabilities $ 48,384 69,579 30,896 87,067
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Exhibit H-4

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2019 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2020
Student Activities $ 48,384 $ 69,579 $ 30,896 $ 87,067
Total All Schools $ 48,384 $ 69,579 $ 30,896 $ 87,067
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings

Total Liabilities

Exhibit H-5

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
$ 70,009 $10,154,642 $10,149,363 $ 75,288
$ 70,009 $10,154,642 $10,149,363 $ 75,288
$ 70,009 $10,154,642 $10,149,363 $ 75,288
$ 70,009 $10,154,642 $10,149,363 $ 75,288
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Exhibit 1-3
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy $ 616,700 $ 616,700 $ 616,700
Total Revenues 616,700 616,700 616,700
EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:
Interest and Other Charges 146,700 146,700 146,700
Redemption of Principal 470,000 470,000 470,000
Total Regular Debt Service 616,700 616,700 616,700
Total Expenditures 616,700 616,700 616,700
Excess/(Deficit) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance, July 1 -0- % -0- -0- -0- $ -0-
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 0- $ 0- $ 0- $ 0- $ -0-

Page 114



STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

This part of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents
Exhibit
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. J-1 thru J-5

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the District's ability to generate its property taxes. J-6 thru J-9

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issue additional debt in the future. J-10 thru J-13

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. J-14 thru J-15

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the District's operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the District's financial information
relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs. J-16 thru J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial report for the relevant year.
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Exhibit J-5

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND- OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Totals Tuition Interest Rentals Miscellaneous
2011 $ 247,033 53,239 $ 25,420 $ 110,000 $ 58,374
2012 208,620 56,380 4,058 110,000 38,182
2013 380,669 43,852 21 110,000 226,796
2014 296,496 37,976 549 110,000 147,971
2015 225,319 34,468 12,949 110,000 67,902
2016 248,089 37,587 11,828 126,575 72,099
2017 217,340 135,051 13,843 24,775 43,671
2018 570,823 441,899 18,133 103,303 7,488
2019 558,209 473,183 3,952 25,173 55,901
2020 576,107 483,449 1,000 5,775 85,883

Source: Borough of Demarest School District Financial Records.
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School District Direct Rate

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS

UNAUDITED

(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value)

Overlapping Rates

Exhibit J-7

Total Direct
Year Ended General Total Direct and
December Obligation School Tax Regional Overlapping
31, Basic Rate  Debt Service Rate Municipality High School County Tax Rate

2010 $ 0.909 0.051 0.960 $ 0.462 $ 0.561 $ 0.237 $ 2.220
2011 0.928 0.050 0.978 0.478 0.579 0.237 2.272
2012 0.939 0.050 0.989 0.511 0.555 0.240 2.295
2013 0.950 0.050 1.000 0.543 0.550 0.255 2.348
2014 0.949 0.051 1.000 0.551 0.546 0.263 2.360
2015 0.949 0.051 1.000 0.563 0.567 0.282 2.412
2016 0.951 0.049 1.000 0.567 0.590 0.288 2.445
2017 0.957 0.043 1.000 0.570 0.611 0.302 2.483
2018 0.961 0.039 1.000 0.562 0.688 0.294 2.544
2019 0.959 0.041 1.000 0.572 0.757 0.296 2.625
Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to

other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the

spending growth limitation calculation.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget

and the net valuation taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.

Source: Municipal Tax Collector and School Business Administrator
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Alpine Country Club
Lavie Mangement Company LLC
Taxpayer #1
Taxpayer #2
Taxpayer #3
Taxpayer #4
Taxpayer #5
Taxpayer #6
Taxpayer #7
Taxpayer #8
Total

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

Exhibit J-8

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED
2019 2010
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net Assessed District Net
Value Assessed Value Value Assessed Value
$ 32,323,800 2.40%
4,232,600 0.31%
3,850,000 0.29% NOT AVAILABLE
3,768,400 0.28%
3,700,000 0.28%
3,598,200 0.27%
3,330,600 0.25%
3,178,800 0.24%
3,177,000 0.24%
3,107,800 0.23%
$ 64,267,200 4.78%
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Fiscal Year Ended

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Taxes Levied for

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the

Levy®

Exhibit J-9

Collections in

June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Percentage of Levy  Subsequent Years
2011 11,977,651 11,977,651 100.00% $ -0-
2012 12,152,670 12,152,670 100.00% -0-
2013 12,393,167 12,393,167 100.00% -0-
2014 12,639,679 12,639,679 100.00% -0-
2015 12,644,878 12,644,878 100.00% -0-
2016 12,894,293 12,894,293 100.00% -0-
2017 13,370,145 13,370,145 100.00% -0-
2018 14,190,942 14,190,942 100.00% -0-
2019 14,777,790 14,777,790 100.00% -0-
2020 15,103,525 15,103,525 100.00% -0-

a -School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount
voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.

Source: Demarest Borough School District records including the Certificate and Report of School

Taxes (A4F form)
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Exhibit J-10

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year General Bond Percentage of

Ended June Obligation Capital Anticipation Personal
30, Bonds Leases Notes (BANs)  Total District Income Per Capita
2011 $ 7,060,000 $ 212,958 $ 2,025,000 $ 9,297,958 2.82% $ 1,893
2012 6,740,000 191,514 1,262,583 8,194,097 2.36% 1,650
2013 6,395,000 82,464 6,477,464 1.88% 1,309
2014 6,025,000 364,277 6,389,277 1.75% 1,285
2015 5,635,000 237,499 5,872,499 1.53% 1,163
2016 5,220,000 177,439 5,397,439 1.42% 1,079
2017 4,590,000 211,617 4,801,617 1.18% 954
2018 4,160,000 571,688 4,731,688 1.12% 959
2019 3,715,000 353,017 4,068,017 0.97% 831
2020 3,245,000 276,820 3,521,820 0.84% 720

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal
income and population for the prior calendar year.

Source: Borough of Demarest School District Financial Reports

Page 127



BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Exhibit J-11

Net General Percentage of
Fiscal Year General Obligation Bonded Debt Actual Taxable
Ended June 30, Bonds Outstanding Value of Property Per Capita

2011 $ 7,060,000 $ 7,060,000 0.58% 1,437
2012 6,740,000 6,740,000 0.55% 1,357
2013 6,395,000 6,395,000 0.52% 1,293
2014 6,025,000 6,025,000 0.48% 1,212
2015 5,635,000 5,635,000 0.44% 1,116
2016 5,220,000 5,220,000 0.41% 1,044
2017 4,590,000 4,590,000 0.36% 912
2018 4,160,000 4,160,000 0.31% 843
2019 3,715,000 3,715,000 0.28% 759
2020 3,245,000 3,245,000 0.24% 663

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Source: Borough of Demarest School District Financial Reports

a See Exhibit J- 6 for property tax data. These ratios is calculated using valuation data for

the previous calendar year.

a See Exhibit J-14 for population data. These ratios is calculated using population estimate

for the previous calendar year.

Page 128



BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019

Governmental Unit
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Borough of Demarest

Northern Valley Regional High School
Bergen County General Obligation Debt

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
Demarest Borough School District Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

UNAUDITED

Exhibit J-12

Estimated
Percentage Estimated Share of
Debt Outstanding Applicable Overlapping Debt
$ 9,507,938 100.00% $ 9,507,938
16,550,915 16.50% 2,730,901
875,747,791 0.90% 7,893,144
20,131,983
3,245,000
$ 23,376,983

a - For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable equalized property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion
of another governmental unit's equalized property value that is within the district's boundaries and dividing

it by each unit's total equalized property value.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments

that is borne by residents and businesses of Demarest Borough. This process recognizes

that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term, the entire debt burden borne
by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that every
taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping unit.

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Bergen County

Board of Taxation; debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.
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Exhibit J-14
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS

UNAUDITED

Per Capita Unemployment Rate
Year Population® Personal Income” Personal Income ° d
2011 4,912 $ 330,282,880 $ 67,240 8.50%
2012 4,967 347,287,673 69,919 8.60%
2013 4,947 343,791,765 69,495 5.80%
2014 4,973 365,694,528 73,536 4.00%
2015 5,050 383,037,450 75,849 3.40%
2016 5,000 379,245,000 75,849 2.90%
2017 5,032 408,613,496 81,203 2.60%
2018 4,933 423,996,283 85,951 2.30%
2019 4,894 420,644,194 85,951 * 2.20%
2020 4,894 ** 420,644,194 ** 85,951 * N/A

* - Latest Bergen County per capita personal income available (2018) was used for calculation purposes.
** - Latest Demarest Borough population available (2019) was used for calculation purposes.
N/A- Not Available

Sources:
a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented
c Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published
by the US Bureau of Economic Analysis.
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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Exhibit J-15

BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED

NOT AVAILABLE
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Exhibit J-19

UNAUDITED
Gross
Projects Building Fiscal Year
*School Facility (w/DOE Project #) Area (SF) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
County Road School N/A 22,645 $ 38244 $ 27,796 $ 31570 $ 38,782 $ 29,091
Luther Lee Emerson SP#201893 44,381 65,380 54,476 61,872 51,079 57,014
Demarest Middle SP#201892 71,919 131,610 88,278 100,263 67,578 92,391
District Total 138,945 $ 235,234 $ 170550 $ 193,705 $ 157,439 $ 178,496
Gross
Projects Building Fiscal Year
*School Facility (w/DOE Project #) Area (SF) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
County Road School N/A 22,645 $ 55854 $ 71913 $ 70,073 $ 74,720 $ 43,514
Luther Lee Emerson SP#201893 44,381 75,316 67,059 67,886 79,410 85,282
Demarest Middle SP#201892 71,919 89,567 82,544 115,131 125,960 141,304
District Total 138,945 $ 220,737 $ 221516 $ 253,090 $ 280,090 $ 270,100

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-1.3)

N/A - Not Available

Source: District records
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT

Property Section
Property- Blanket Bldgs & Grounds
School Limit Per Statement of Values
Flood:
Outside Zones A, V, or B
Zone AorV
Earthquake
Extra Expense

Contractor's Equipment
Cameras & Other Equip/Athletic Equip
Musical Instruments

$10,000 Maximum Per Item
Valuable Papers
Electronic Data Process Equip
Accounts Receivable

Boiler & Machinery
Property Damage (Blanket)

General Liability
General Aggregate
Each Occurrence

Commercial Automobile Liability
Combined Single Limit
Comprehensive
Collision

Commercial Umbrella

Excess Umbrella
Note: Shared Limits
Per Occurrence
Aggregate

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

UNAUDITED

INSURANCE COMPANY

Great American
Insurance Co.

Great American
Insurance Co.

Great American

Insurance Co.

Great American
Insurance Co.

Great American
Insurance Co.

Fireman's Fund

COVERAGE

$ 31,578,445

5,000,000
2,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

250,000
250,000
250,000
5,000,000

5,000,000
100,000

Property Limit

2,000,000
1,000,000

1,000,000

9,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000

Exhibit J-20
lof2

DEDUCTIBLE

5,000
50,000

500,000
50,000

5,000

1,000
1,000

1,000
1,000

10,000
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Exhibit J-20

20f2
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED
INSURANCE COMPANY COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE
Workmen's Compensation Safety National
Per Occurrence $ 1,000,000
Policy Limit 1,000,000
Aggregate 1,000,000
Environmental Legal Liability Markel
Per Occurrence 2,000,000 $ 25,000
Per Aggregate Group 20,000,000
Crime Selective Insurance Co.
Primary (Per Employee) 100,000 5,000
Blanket Employee Dishonesty- Excess 500,000 100,000
Forgery and Alterations 100,000 1,000
School Board Legal Liability Greenwich Insurance Co 1,000,000
Educators Legal Deductible 100,000
HIB, Defense Only
Individual Bonds Selective Insurance Co.
Business Administrator/ Bd Secy 300,000
Treasurer of School Monies 300,000
Accidental Death & Dismemberment Gerber Life Ins. Co.
Principal Sum (AD&D) 100,000
Total Limit Per All Other Accidents 500,000
Student and Athletic Accident Policy Catlin Insurance Co
Athletics & Students 1,000,000
School Volunteers 500,000
Cyber Liability Indian Harbor
Group Aggregate 6,000,000
3rd Party Coverage 2,000,000 15,000
1st Party Coverage 1,000,000 15,000

Source: District records
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Demarest School District
County of Bergen, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey (the “Department”), the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Demarest
School District, in the County of Bergen (the "District") as of, and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for determining audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

December 7, 2020 NISIVOCCIA LLP
Mount Arlington, New Jersey

Francee Oonea sd Moscvoccar /L
Francis Jonef 4

Certified Public Accountant

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
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Report on Compliance For Each Major State Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Borough of Demarest School District
County of Bergen, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Borough of Demarest School District’s (the "District’s") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the New Jersey State Aid/ Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on the District’s major state program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The District's
major state program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the District’s major state program based on our audit of
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™) and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-
08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform
Guidance and New Jersey’s OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major state program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on the major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major state program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and NJOMB 15-08, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance or NJOMB
15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

December 7, 2020 NISIVOCCIA LLP
Mount Arlington, New Jersey

Fraances Qom ol Nsacirocces LLP
Francis Jone€ 4

Certified Public Accountant

Licensed Public School Accountant #1154
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K-5
BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state grant activity
of the Board of Education, Borough of Demarest School District under programs of the federal and state governments
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The information in these schedules are presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™) and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-
08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Because the schedules present
only a selected portion of the operations of the District, they are not intended to and do not present the financial
position, changes in net position or cash flows of the District.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are reported on the
budgetary basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is described in Note 1 to the District’s basic financial
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts, if any,
shown on the Schedules represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported
as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the General and Special Revenue Funds on a GAAP basis. Budgetary
comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the General and Special Revenue Funds to demonstrate
finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in
the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures
have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes these payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due
to the state deferral and recording of the last two state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund
is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances
as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenue, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($6,112) for the General Fund and $ -
0- for the Special Revenue Fund. See Exhibit C-3 for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual
basis of accounting for the General and Special Revenue Funds.

Awards and financial assistance revenue are reported on the Board’s basic financial statements on the GAAP basis as
presented below:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 2,858,674 $ 2,858,674
Special Revenue Fund $ 176,000 176,000
Total Awards $ 176,000 $ 2,858,674 $ 3,034,674
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

NOTE 5. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state
financial reports.

NOTE 6. OTHER

TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the State for the employers’ share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Summary of Auditors' Results:

The Independent Auditors’ Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the District.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial
statements as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of honcompliance material to the financial statements of the District which would be required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over the major state program
disclosed during the audit as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance For Each Major State
Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major state program for the District expresses an unmodified opinion
on the major state program.

The District was not subject to the single audit provisions of the Uniform Guidance for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020 as federal grant expenditures were less than the single audit threshold of $750,000 identified in the
Uniform Guidance.

The audit did not disclose any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with New Jersey’s
OMB Circular 15-08 or 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

The District’s program tested as a major state program for the current fiscal year consisted of the following:

State Award Budgetary
Grant Number Grant Period Amount Expenditures
State:
Reimbursed TPAF Social
Security Contributions 20-495-034-5094-003 7/1/19-6/30/20 $ 463,220 $ 463,220

The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B for state programs was $750,000.

The District was determined to be a “low-risk auditee” for state programs.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
(Continued)

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements which are required to be Reported in Accordance with Generally
Accepted Government Auditing Standards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings required to be reported under Generally Accepted Government Auditing
Standards.

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

- Not applicable since federal expenditures were below the single audit threshold.

Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any finding or questioned costs for state awards as defined in 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the
Uniform Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08.
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BOROUGH OF DEMAREST SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Status of Prior Year Findings:

There were no prior year findings.
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